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Cash generated from operations

Earnings per share
Dividends per share declared In the year
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2016
£000
118,069
118,192
10,921
5,939
16,860
16,948
26,782

22.1p
40p

2015
£000
119,132
119,132
14,979
1,498
16,477
16,585
25,579

38.3p
52p

12
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30
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35
36
37
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39
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60

*Constant currency revenue is caleulated by camparing results in the undertying currencdies for 2016 and 2015, both converted at the 2015 average

exchange rates as set gut on gage 10,
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CHAIRMAN'’S PREAMBLE
Comply or explaln — an effective board

The board spent a day recently debating the fact that many proxy votes were cast against it. They were mostly aimed at the remuneration
policy {a very fashianabile topic these days), the nan-executsve directors who have served ‘tao long® and, me, the chawrman an numerous
counts

As the voting at the AGM stself was unanimausly in favaur of all resolutions, we would ba safe Ignorng thase proxies, cast as they are,
targely, by institutional investors and aften by ther camphance teams and not the fund managers themselves. Nevertheless they raise twa
Issues: have we explained ourselves properly, and does anyone take any notice If we do? We explain ourselves thoroughly in our corporate
governance report (page 17) but some are missed by looking too closely at the detail.

The first issue | will address here by going through the FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL GUIDANCE ON BOARD EFFECTIVENESS (Hogg, 2011)
line by Tine and explaining where we do and do not comply 1 have used thls summary document rather than the full Code as it was
published ‘to assist companies in applying the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Cade’. The principles are the mostimportant
thing and we none of us want to get hung up on word interpratation, It may take some time but please read on

The second issue will become apparent as time goes by

We are charged with being effective and it s a right and proper responsibility | will quote the Guldance in italics and say what we da
afterwards:

The board’s role Is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the company within a framework af prudent and effective contrals which
enables risk to be gssessed and ma

| prefer ‘effective’ to ‘entrepreneurial’, nevertheless the board at Games Workshop sees this as its maln responsibliity We comply.

An effactrve board develops and promotes its collective vision of the company's purpose, its culture, its values and the behoviours it wishes
to promote in conducting its business

In particular it. prowdes direction for management; demonstrates ethicol leadersinp, displaying - and promating throughaut the company —
behaviours consistent with the cutture and vofues it hos defined for the orgonisation®; crentes a performance culture that drives value
cregtion without exposing the compony to excessive risk of value destruction; mokes well-informed ant hegh-quahty decisions based on @
tlear fine of sight into the business, creates the right fromework for helping directors meet their statutory dutles under the Compantes Act
2006, andfor other relevant statutory and reguldgtory regimes, is accountable, particularly ta thase thot prowide the company's copitol, and
thinks carefully about 1ts governance errongements and embroces evaluation cf thelr effectiveness

We do all these and take every point very senously We comply The line where some will disagree with us is this ane’ cregtes o
gerfarmance culture that drives volue creation without exposing the company to excessive risk of vafue destructian’. We do nat have LTIPs
or any bonus schemes for seror management. We do have payment schernes designed to encourage store managers to sell more, and we
have a company wide schema that allows all employees to share in profitable growth it Tewards ALL employees not just the chosen few
Both schemes are dasigned to enhance value LTIPs and boruses for senor staff are deemed to be necessary by same to encourage value
creation, but mare, to ensure Jongewity of staff and help with succession planming These are not needed at Games WOrkshop‘ Our
executive directors bath have around 20 years service with the company Their liely replacements have been here a similar length of time
{well over 10 years) And, yes, they will be internal appaintments. In fact, we see 10 years as the running-n penad | suspect these schemes
are needed In businesses that have an etemal merry-go-round of executives who appear and disappear with monotonous regulanty They
are not needed at Games Workshop, and | trust they never will be Furthermore | believe they are fundamentally se!f-serving and
disastrously value destroying. Nothing leaves a sourer taste in the mauth than executives lirung therr own pockets and claiming it Is for the
lang term good of the husiness before moving on to thelr next golden handshake clutching their golden parachute

At Games Warkshop we employ people with Integrity People with integrity always work as hard as they can and always for the good of the
business

'nnwmdshammrmmmm. and, of tourse, Ith Entreprensunal is an odd word to use. Most boards aren’t and shouldn't be Those that are nced to be left 4o get on
with it

" We do th 1, 20d 1 bet we are ane of tha few who 00 it property

! Cute use of the word excessive’

* Thus sget Just theory as we thed it and i was counter product ve
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Comply or explain — an effective board continued

An effective board should nat necessarily be a comfortable ploce Chollenge, as well as teamwork, is an essential feature. Diversity in board
composition is an impoartant driver of @ bourd’s effectiveness, treating a breadth of perspective among directors, and breaking down o
tendency towards ‘group think’

We belleve we do comply with the intent of this paragraph, whilst acknowledging scme may think we do not.

We fully agree that ‘group think’ Is a bad thing. We fully agree that challenge Is an essential ingredient In an effective board, as Is
teamwork. We do not agree that diversity for its own sake is the answer® We believe that each director must be independent of mind. Ta
imply that someone Is not independent minded because of time served or sex of ethnicity or religion or whatever else Is false.

Worse, It iImplies that ‘diversity’ adds value, allowing groups and sub-groups to be added to an eternally growing Jist until the whole thing is
reduced ad absurdum

1 recently received a letter congratulating the board on recruiting a woman as NED, to address our diversity issues. How sexist 1s that? it is
not our board that Is suffering from ‘group think’

Only independence of mind counts There are no proxies, no quotas that get around it Rubbish directors are rubbish directars The fact
that they allow boxes to be ticked an arcane lists doesn’t make them effective. Good, independent minded directors are as hens’ teeth,
gold dust. We have six. Including me.

One thing Hogg makes very clear Is: Ultimately it is for individual boords to declde on the governance arrangements most appropriate to
their circumstances, and interpret the Code and guldance accordingly Institutions should take this more serlously Their one-siza-fits-all
comphance regime is becoming antithetical to the whole process, and risks bringing thelr industry Into disrepute

Games Workshop - the IP play

Gver the years we have been exhorted by some to develop our revenue stream by ‘leveraging’ our IP Using our great imagery we coutd do
all sorts of lucrative and exciting value-enhancing [r.e take prwvate and re-float) deals. Actually, what they really mean is: do a moviel

We have never NOT done licensing deais, as you tan see fram the steady stream of royalties we earn; it’s Just that we believe we must do
them on aur terms and not prostitute the business to any and every dzal that comes along. If we do a movie (along with the cancomitant
abandonment of the toy rights®) it will be on terms that do not compramise our business. It sn't likely.

Long term owners will notice a big increase In royalty income this year. Have we sold out at last? No, it's just that working closely with the
myriad app developers, and being more precise w.th the terms we offer, we have increased tha number of ‘computer’’ games In the

market.

Tom Kirby
Non-executive chairman
25 july 2016

b - “Prversity’ s becoming & group think word tself, The cure far all our Itsf Nirvanal
Mwne doubting this aspect of movies needs to read how Marvel prevented an tran Man movie having a female as the main baddie because It would hurt the 1oy seles
" This covers phone, tablet, PCand consale We have procucts on aft these piatforms
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and ohjectives

Games Workshop's ambitions remain clear to make the best fantasy ministures in the world and sell them globally at a profit, and it
intends doing 50 forever This statement Includes all the key elements of what we do and why we do It that way All of our decision making
Is focussed on the long term success of Gameas Workshop, not shart term gains

Let me go through it part by part-

The first element - we make high quality miriatures We understand that what we make Is not for everyone, so to recruit and re-recruit
customers wa are absolutely focussed on making our madels the best In the world. In order to continue to do that forever and to deliver a
decent return to our awners, we sell them for the price that we believe the investment in quabiy Is worth

The second element Is that we make fantasy minlatures based in our Imaginary worlds This gives us control over the Imagery and styles we
use and ownership af the intellectual property Aside from our core business, we are constantly locking to grow our rayaity income from
opportunities to use our IP in other markets.

The third element is the global nature of our business We seek out our customers all over the world, We believe that cur customers carry
our Hobby gene and 1o find them we apply our tried and tested approach of recrulting customers In our own stores, by offering a fantastic
customer expenence. Our retail business Is supparted by our own mall order store it has the full range of our product) and our
independent stockist accounts and trade outlets across the world These mdependent accounts do a great job supporting our customers in
parts of the world where we either have not yet opened ane of cur stores or where it is not commeraally viable for us to have ana of our
stores The long term goal Is to have both channels {retail and trade) growing fn harmony. Wae will always have more independent accounts
than our own stores. Our strategy is to grow our business thraugh geographic spread growing 2!l of the thvee complzmentary channels.

The fourth element is being focussed on cash, By dellvering a good cash return every year we can continue to Innovate, surprise and

delight our loyal existing customers and new customers with great praduct. To be around forever we also need to invest in both long term .
capital and short term maintenance projects every year, pay our staff what they have earned for the value they contribute and deliver

surplus cash to our shareholders. Our dedication and focus should ensure we deliver on time and within our agreed cash Hmits,

We measure our long term success by seeking a high return on investment In the short term, we will measure aur success on our ability to
grow sales whilst mawmntaining our core business operating profit masgin The way we go about implementing this strategy is to recruit the
best staff we can by looking for the appropriate attitudes and behaviour each job we do requires and identifying the value that job brings
It s also Important that everyone we employ has a real desire to learn and has a great att tude to change Our Academy offers all of cur
staff both personal development and management skills training 1t +s also worth noting it's not what you know at Games Warkshop it's
how much you contribute to our success that we value

We continue to believe there are great opportunities far growth, particularty in North America and Northern Eurape.
Business model and structure

We design, manufacture, distribute and sell our fantasy minlatures and related products. These are fantasy menlatures from our own
Warhammer 20,000 and Warhammer Age of Sigmar universes Our factory, main distribution centrs and back office support functions are
all based in Nottingham

We are an intemational business centrally run from our HQ.In Nottingham, with 22% of our sales coming from outside the UK

Design
Employing 181 people, the design studio in Nottingham creates all the IP and the mintatures, artwork, games and publications that we sell
In 2015/16 we invested £7.5 million in the studio {ncluding software costs) with a further £2 2 million spent on toohing for new plastic
miniatures. We are committed to a similar level of investment every year,

Monufacture

We are proud to manufacture aur product v Nottingham It's where we started and where we intend to stay We are currently warking an
a significant project, with a Jeading UK software suppher, to upgrade our core [T systems that interface with our manufacturing equpment
and systems

Distribute

All of our groduct is initially distributed {rom our warehouse facility in Nottingham This fac ity supplies our two hubs in Memphis,
Tennessee and Sydney, Australia and either directly to our trade accounts and retail stares or via a third party carner Our project to
upgrade the IT Infrastructure and software for the warehouse that supports our mai order store based in Nottngham will be delivered in
the Auturnn of 2016/.7
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Business model and structure coniinued

Seli
We sell via three channels, our own stares ‘Retall’, third party independent retallers ‘Trade’ and aur 'Mall order” web store,

Retail - provides the focus for the Hobby In thelr areas. They only stock Games Workshop product They are where we recruit the majonty
of our new customers. To do so the stares don't offer the full range of our product, just new release product and the appropriate extended
range At the year end we had 451 Games Workshop stores in 20 countries Our storas contributed 41% of the year's sales. We have 355
one man stores, smail sites, each one stalfed by only one store manager We alfso have 96 multi-man stores, which are constantly reviewed
to ensure they remam profitable. If not, they will be doser and replaced with one man stores.

Trade - we sell to third party retallers under closely contralled terms and conditions. They help us sell our products around the world and
importantly in areas where we don't have our own stores independent retatlers are an integral part of our business model, Games
Waorkshop strives to support those outlets which help to build the Hohby commun.ty in their local area. The bulk of these sales are made
via our telesales teams based tn Memphis and Nottingham We also have small teams in Sydney, Tokyo and Shanghal. In 2015/16 we had
3,800 independent retatlers (2015° 3,700) In 55 countries We have successfully introduced over the last few years a stockist programme
which is designed to sell the right amount of stock into every account In line with their store format and performance This programme Is
reviewed annually The intentlon is that we stock all of our stockist accaunis with our best sellers We strwe to dellver excellent servee,
operating In 18 languages covering all time zones. 38% of our sales came from sales to independent retatlers in the year reported

Mall order - the mail order store allows enthusiasts full access to all Games Warkshop products it is run centrally from Nottingham. It
accounted for 21% of total sales in 2015/16 All of our stores also have a web store terminal that allows our retall customers access to the

full range

Structure

We control the business centrally from Nottingham, it is where the people with experlence and knowledge of running our niche businass
work. 1 have put in place a flat structure the people with senior respensibility whoa make afl of the big dedisions report directly to me, My
team Is split Into three parts: sales, operations and merchandising and marketing.

My channel sales structure camprises retail, trade and mail order. This structure is made up of four key territory retail sales managers in
the UK, North Amer.ca, Continental Europe and Australia and New Zealand We also have a global trade manager and a giobal mad ordar
manager along with a sales manager for Asia. During the year | appointed a new global merchandising and marketing manager

My aperatians and support structure Includes a finance director for Games Warkshop who is respansible for accaunts, complance and
legal duties We have a product and supply manager who 1s responsible for our factory, logistics and design studios (Citade] and Forge
World) He also manages our three maln distnbution hubs in Nottingham, Memphis and Sydney A personnel manager and our Academy
personal development and skills traiming ensure we take gur pecple recruitrent and development senously All of our sentor managers
attend management skills training, as a team, three times per year

Key performance Indicators

The board and management team use a number of key performance indicators to provide a consistent method of analysing performante,
m addition to allowing the board to benchmark performance against our forecast The key perfermance indicators utifised by the bpard can
be spht into key finandal performance indicators and key non-financial perfarmance indicators

Our key financial performance indicators are;

Moving Annual Tatal {"MAT') sales growth by channel
Measures the sales growth achieved In each of our channels on a rolling 12 month basis see pages 9 and 10

MAT Group gross margin
Measures the gross profit achieved on sales after taking account of the direct costs and depreciation of manufacturing equipment and
shipping our product to customers/stores on a rolling 12 month basis seapage 6

MAT core business profit
Measures gross profit less operating expenses on a 12 month rolling basis, before royalty income see page 8

Number of own stores by tertitory
Measures the number of our own stares which is an indicator of our global reach see page 10

MAT number of ardering stockist accounts by territory
Measures the number of trade outlets that have ordered from us In the fast s months, it is an indicator of our giobal reach amdd the health
of our trade account base see ‘Trade’ paragraph above

Return on capital
The ratio of operating profit befare royalty income against capital employed, as a percentage. see page 8
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Key performance Indicators continued
Our key non-financio! performance indicators are

Product guality
This Is an Indicator of the effectiveness of our design studio and our continuous improvement tn design to manufacture. We measure this
by looking at sefl through. if the product Is great we sell a lot, if not we sell very few

Cutstanding customer service

This is an indlicator of the effectiveness and sificiency of the service experience customers gel in aur stores and the time it takes us to
resolve a customer query mada to our customer service teams. The former Is measured by the number of complaints | recelve - very few -
and the latter Is tracked by five micro KPIs, Our approach is that ‘the customer Is always right’ and we do our utmost to resoive successfully
any Issues

Shareholder value

We believe shareholder value Is created, primanly, by not destroying it We have no Intentian to acqulre other compantes, nor to dispose
of any of those we own.

We retum our surplus cash to our awners and try to do so in ever increasing amounts

Graph of shareholder value
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Shareholder value for this graph is calculated as the prce of the shares at year and plus the dividend per share paid in the year.
Review of the year

We made progress in what was another busy and rewarding year We started the financial year off with a huge preduct faunch,
Warhammer. Age of Sigmar, ona of the biggest changes we've ever made to one of gur core universes, Our deslgn to manufacture was
outstanding, over-dalivaring in terms of original concept art to final manufactured models, producing some of the best models we've ever
made The simplified rules, supporting the models for those who like to play, made it much easier to get started We learnt same valuable
lessons during the year en how to defiver product system changes on this scale and as we released more of the range In the second half of
the year, we finished the year with sales of Warhammer: Age of Sigmar at a higher rate than Warhammer has enjoyed for several years.

ARer a disappolnting December we carried out a tharaugh review of our operational plans and, thanks 10 a great team effort, we bounced
back with four out of five manths of profitable sales growth. Our reparted sales for the year showed marginal declines in retall {-1.3%) and
mail order {-1.8%) and growth In trade {+0 1%)

Gross margin was maintalned in the period (2016 €8 3%; 2015 68.9%) We continued with our palicy of only increasing the prices of aur
new releases {approximately 30% of our sales) to reflect the necessary investment in our product affer and the quality we have budt into
thesa new releases The annual iImpact of this increase on our UK RRP price hist is an average increase of 3%

Costs have Increased In the year, mainly as a result of our store opening programme and the full year effect of the depreciation of the
investment In gur visitar centre which opened In Aprll 2015,
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Update on pricrities for 2015/16

In the year we focussed on the (ollowing intiatives designed to improve our performance tn our existing stores and support future store
openings

Staff recrultment

In November 2015 { hired a global recruitrnent cansultant. She has been kicking the tyres and carrying aut a roat and branch reviaw of our
teams and our processes in January we pllated some of the recommendations in North America and recrusted a new small team. it's early
days but we are pleased with the results We stiif require all candidates to write us a great latter telling us why they want the job; we have
now complemented this with a direct and online approach to find good staff The changes are being rolled out across the other retall
territonies as well as m our global trade teams in 2016/17

Cne man stores
The tinung of the changes to recruitment In North Amenca coincided with a small expenenced project team being seconded from the UK to
North America to support the existing taam there in delivering two objectives

They delivered both objectives We now have a small retall sales HQ In Datlas and have successfully opened 16 stores (net) this year, taking
our total to 100 stores More Importantly, we have improved our processes to allow us to open a further 20 sach year Combinad with the
improved recruitment team in Dallas we are now more confident that we can defiver the potential of Games Workshop In North Amernica

We focussed on the followmyg Initlatives to deliver an impravement In our product offer, our customer senice and how we promote our
praduct range

Range

During the year, | carried out a review of our praduct strategy As a direct result, we now offer aur models at a broader range of price
points. We have piloted a small ‘Start Collecting’ range of modets that have sold well. We have also Introduced some stand alone high value
box games, a simple gateway Into Gamas Workshop product, they too have been 3 hit. We will continue to seek to improve our product
offer and be more customer focussed in 2016/17.

Merchandising and marketing

We are increasingly focussed on promoting our product range better on a global scale, To assist me | recruited a senior global
merchandising and marketing manager In March 2016 He is respansible for supperting our product and supply and sales teams to ensure
our stores make the best use aof the space that they have and that we back cur three channels with the appropriate product and marketing
support,

We piloted the following inthiatives in the year; | will update you further In 2016/17

Asig

After overcoming the burden of paper work and complexity of opening businesses in Asia we now have four new sales terntory managers
in Asa, in Singapore, Hong Kong. Japan and Malaysia in addition to our existing business in China They will grow Games Workshop
profitably by opening stocklst accounts and our own stores

High footfoll Iocations
We have 96 multi-man format stares and 355 one man stores. ODue to the timung of the lease breaks the oppostunity arose to pllot some
{arger multi-man farmat stores un quely placed to service a greater numbers of customers

Our Tottenham Court Road store, Londan, Is on target to be our highest transaction and sales value store, 1 has delivered its promises. The
other pilots in Sydney and Copenhagen defivered their promises too. These successes leave us with same format options to deploy when
the opporturuties arise Our standard format wiil continue to be our one man store model,

New business opportunities

To brogden our reach without distracting our core channels, we are piloting a smal' range of products in new markets. We launched 3
dispenser of eight products called Battle for Vedros In tay shaps in North America In June 2016 and will launch a small range calied 8uild
and Paint globally in madelling and toy shops later in 2016/17.

Finally, to assist me In managing our broader commerclal opportumties, | have created a new business development team to manage our
broader nan-core activities This team will be responsible for sales and profit growth of our non-core activities which mclude ficensing,
digital, export, non-strategic trade accounts, boek trade, magatine, and appropriate mass market oppartunities The results are shown
under nan-care in the segmental analysis,
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Update on priorities for 2015/16 continued

ticensing

The team have had an exciting year, probably our best year to date, with soma successful launches. Bloodbowd 2, Warhammer- End Times -
Vermintide, Warhammer 40,000 Freeblade and the launch on 27 May 2016 of the real time strategy game, Total War- Warhammer,

Reported Income Is split as foltlows: 78% PC and consale games, 15% mobile and 7% other

Projects
in the year we had three major projects being Implemented

* European ERP - enterprise resourte planning {core back office systems) - replacement. This project is more complex and costly than we
had originafly stated and will now launch in 2018 at an estimated cost of £6 0 million (2015 estimate £4.5 million)

* Forge World mall order store. This was dellvered on time In August 2015 and within cash limits.

* Mall order warehouse system replacement It is estimated to cost £0.9 million and will be implemented in 2016/17

Return on capital*
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A key measura of our gerformance 1s return on capital During the year our return on capital fell from 40% to 27% This was driven by both
a decline in operating profit before royalty income and an Increase w capita!l employed

Sales

Reported sales fell by 0 9% to £118 1 mulhon for the year. On a constant currency basls, sales were down by 0 8% from £119 1 mili on to
E118 2 milkion; sphit by channel this campnsed retail £48.9 mHlion {2015 £49 1 million), trade £44 1 mullion (2015. £44.4 m lion) and mait
ordar £25 2 million {2015 £25.6 million)

Ogerating profit

Core business aperating profit (operating profit before rayaity income) fell by £4 1 mullion to £10.9 mullion (2015 £15 0 million) On a
constant currency bass, core bus ness operating profit decreased by £3.1 miilion to £11.9 milkon, This was driven by a decline Inour
underlying performance in core retail and mal order.

Costs have been managed well, They have increased by £2.5 miflion in the year malnly as a result of investments for the long term, £1.9
million in cur store opening programme, £0.4 million in a new sales t2am in Asia and the additional depreciation of our visitar centre which
epensd in Apnl 2015.

Capital employed
Average capital employed® Increased by £1 7 midhon to £40 2 million. The boak value of tangible and intangible assets Increased by £2 3
milhon whilst inventories increased by £0 5 million and current liabilities increased by £1.0 rmullion.

Cash generatlan

During the year, the Group's core aperating actvities generated £19 5 million of cash after tax payments {2015, £20 7 million) The Group
also received cash of £4 7 milhon 1n respect of royalties in the year (2015 £2 & mil ien). After purchases of tangible and intangible assets
ang product development costs of £12 7 million {2015 £12 4 m llion) and dividends of £12.8 milhon (2015 #16 6 miliion) there were nat
funds at the year end of £11.8 million (2015 £12 & million).

*We use sverags caphal empioyed 10 take account of the sigrificant fluctuation In working capital which occurs 23 the business builds both Inventorles and trade recelvables In the
pre-Christmas trading pe: od Retumn is defined as pre-excep®onal operatmy profit befare rovalty Incame, and the average capital employed Is adjusted by deducting assets and
adding back labiMities 1 rezpect of cash, borrowings, exceptional provison, taxation, deferted royaity income and dividen ds,
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Cash generstion continued
The chart below shows a bridge of operaling profit to cash generated

8ridge of operating profit te cosh generated

&M
04 * -£127m T
25.0
20.0
-E2.6m
15.0
| ] -£0 8m +£0 6m
10.0 - -
5.0
Operating profit Deprediation and Investmentsin Tax paid Changes in Other Cash generated
amortisation assels working capital pre distribution
Investments in assets
This is what we have been spending your money on.
2016 2015
£million £million
Shagp fits for new and existing stares 18 08
Production equipment and toohng 28 30
Computer equipment and scftware 35 1.6
Lenton site Induding the new visitor centre 0.1 24
Total capital additions 8.0 7.8

in 2015/16 we invested £1 8 million in shop fits 48 new stores and 20 refurbishments We also Invested £2.5 million in tooling, miling and
wjectian moulding machines The investment in computer software relates to the new Farge World web stora as well as the instiaf work on
the new ERP system and mail order warghouse system replacement Capital investment is expected to be higher than depreciat'on and
amortisation over the next few years as we upgrade our core back office systems in Nottingham.

Dividends
We followed our principle of returning truly surplus cash to shareholders. Dividends of 40 pence ger share {2015, 52p) were paud during
the year (€£12.8 million, 2015 £16 6 million)

Royaity income
Ruoyalty income increased in the period by £4 4 million to £5.9 milllon This was due to the streng perfarmances of Total War Warhammer

and Warhammer End Times - Vermuntide,

Taxation
The tax rate far the year was 20 4% (2015 26 1%) We conimue to expect 2 rate above that for business activities based sclely In the UK,

due to higher gverseas tax rates.
Sales by channel

41% (2015 41%) of sales were made through our own stores, 38% {2015 38%) of sales were to Independent retailers and 21% (2015 21%)
were mall arder,

O Mallorder 21%
@ Trade 38%

O Own stores $1%
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Retail
Store openings and closures during the year

Number of stores Number of stores Number of oneman  Number of one man
at May 2015 Opened Closed at May 2016 stores at May Z016  stores at May 2015
uK 142 g (3) 148 111 108
North America 84 19 {3) 100 86 2
Europe 145 13 (9} 149 113 105
Australia 43 3 - 46 38 k(3
Asta 4 4 - 8 7 3
418 48 {15) 451 355 324

We opened 48 new stores in the year Including 7 relocated stores These new stores generated £2 1 million of sales and made a loss of £0.1
mifkon. Due to the under performance of some of our new stores in Continental Europe, we have paused any new store openings in this
tertltory for 2016/17. Our main focus for store openings will be Narth America. This will allow us to focus on Improving our exisung stare
performance.

Retall sales fell by 1.3 % In the year (-0.4% at constant currency). Our underlying performance was -4 4%, which was mostiy offset by the
contribution from 33 nat new stores and our new visitor cantre delivering 100% growth.

Our underlying perfarmance tn our own stores ta January 2016 wasn't good encugh | made some changes in gur in-country retall support
structure to address the decline Our flat management structure did not support the compiex:ty of managing 149 stores across 14 countrles
in Cantinental Europe, In January 2016 we moved 10 a country based solution We now have four territory managers;
Germany/Scandinavia, Netherlands, France and Spainfitaly. We are also plloting five training stcres n North Amenica. These tralning stores
are run as profitable stores. To reduce travel time and cost we now send our new recruits for their initlal training to ene of these stores.

We are launching a new skills based training programme at our August 2016 global retall workshops

Trade

Sales increased by 0.1% during the year (-0 7% at constant currency). Our new trade team for accounts in the UK and Continental Europe
has settled in well and made some progress m the year Sales in North America were broadly in line with ast year We have also updated
our trade product range in June 2016 to ensure we prowide our stockist accounts with our best seflers

Mail ordor

Sales fell by 1 8% (-1 6% at constant currency) Sales of our Forge World range grew by 28% offset by a 12% decline In our Citadel range In

the first half of 2016/17 we will be making a change to our home page; removing complexity and adding a deeper introduction to our

worlds. We are committed to continuous investment in our web store shopping expenance. s

During the year wa succassfully migrated our web data centre to a new location i North America.
Treasury

The abjective of our treasury operation is the cost effective management of financlal risk The relationship with the Group's bank Is
managed centrally it operates within a range of board approved policies. No transactions of a speculative nature are permitted,

Funding and liquidity risk
The Group pays for its operations entirely from our cash flow

Interest rate risk
Net Interest receivable for the year (excluding unwinding of discounts on provisions) was £90,600 {2015+ £208,000).

Fareign exchange
Qur big currency exposures are the euro and US dollar
euro LS doMlar
016 2015 2016 2015
Year end rate used for the balance sheet 1.32 139 1.46 153
Average rate used for earmings 135 131 1.49 158

The net impact in the year of these exchange rate fluctuations on our operating profit was a reduction of £0 6 muflion (2015 reductien of
£2 5millicn)

Gender diversity, greenhouse gases, soclal, community and human rights, and employees
We report an these taplcs In the directors’ report on pages 14 and 15
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Priurities for 2016/17

As part of our overall strategy, three kay initlatives wiil be prioritised in 2016/17 These are designed to deliver sales growth whilst
maintalning our operating profit margin.

Flrstly, staff recruftment

Glohally we recruit hundreds of people evary year, Buflding on the progress we made last year we are updating our recruftment web site,
ouf tcompany branding across all other sodal medla platforms and creating a site to enable us to welcome and commence Induction prior
10 new recrults starting with us. These improvements will also give us a global dashboard of recruitment metrics te help us develop and

train cur globa! recruitment teams and processes.

Secondly, we will continua to ceview our product range and offer

We will be reviewing our entry {eve! ‘getting started” product range and in store merchandising. Currently all of our own stones carry the
same retafl range. We will be loaking at a matrix approach of broadening aur product range in our higher volume stores and optimising our
product range in some of our smafler stores. We will also continue to Invest in core IP with exciting product launches planned throughout

2016/17.

Thirdly, we will continue to focus on recrulting new customers and retaining our existing customers for longer. The alm is to

1. Open mare of our own stores, mostly in our one man store format. My goal is to open 20 stores {net) in 2016/17, subject to the

continued Improvement of ouf existing stores.
2. Open mare stockist trade accounts using our stockist strategy. This will be based on our well established terms and conditions, selling

ndependent accounts our best selling products and, where appropriate, the extended range.

Risks and uncertainties

The board has averall responsibility for ensuring risk Is appropriately managed across the Group. The top five risks to the Group are
reviewed at each board meeting. The risks are rated as to thew business impact and their likellhood of occurring. In addition, the Group has
a disaster recovery plan to ensure ongolng operations are maintained in all circumstances. The principal risks Identified in 2015/16 are
discussed below. These risks are not intended to be an extensive analysls of all risks that may arise but more Importantly are the ones that
coufd cause business interruption in the year ahead. The financlal risks impacting the Group are detatled on pages 53 and 54.

ERP change - as discussed above we are changing our core ERP system In the UK. This Is a complicated project with the risk of widespread
business disruption if It is not implemented well. it is being implemented and managed by a strong internal project team and specialist ERP

software consultants,
Store manager recruitment - this comprises both recruitment of managers for new stores as well as replacing poor parforming managers

Retall s our primary method of recrulting new customers and so we need grezt managers In all our stores We discuss our approach as to

how we are managing this risk on page 7.

Supply chaln - as discussed abave we are currently changing our mail order warehouse system. This Is part of an ongoing programme of
continuous improvement for these warehouse systems. As with any system change there are risks associated with the transition. In line
with aur ERP project, we have a strong internal project team and are utilising specialist supply chain software consultants.

Range management - as discussed above we ate reviewing our range to ensure that we are exploring all apportunities. The risk is that we
don’t fully explolt all the opportunities that are avalfable to us. Our approach to managing this risk is discussed on page 7.

Distractions - this Is anything eise that gets in the way of us delivering our goals

Woe do not consider that we have material solvency or liquidity risks. We also feel that It is toa early to tefl what the effects of the recent €U
referendum vote will be on Games Workshop.

n my opinion the greatest risk is the same one that we repeat each year, namely, management, 50 long as we have the right people in the
right jobs we will be fine. Problems will arise If the board aflows egos and private agendas to rule | will do my utmost to ensure that this

does not happen on my watch

Summary
We are working together as one great Games Workshop team and | befleve the progress we have made in the second half demanstrates

we have bullt some solld foundations for the year ahead,

We have again honoured aur cammitment to distribute genuinely surplus cash to our sharehotders. That commitment Isn't golng to
change

We are confident we can achieve the priorities | have set for 2016/17. { will keep you appropriately Informed

The board cantigues to believe that the prospects for the business are good
K P QW-L

Kevin Rountrea
CEo
25 July 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report tagether with the financial statements and Independent auditors’ report for the year ended 29
May 2016

General Information

Games Workshop Group PLC (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries {together the ‘Group’) designs and manufactures miniature figures and
games and distributes these through [ts awn network of retail stares, independent retailers and direct via the internet and mall order The
Group has manufacturing activitles tn the UK and sells mainfy in Continental Euroge, North Amerca and Asia Pactfic.

The Company Is a pubdic listed company, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of ils registered office is Willow
Road, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2WS, United Kingdom. The Company’s ardinary shars capital is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Substantlal shareholdings
The fallowing interests in 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company #s at 22 July 2016 have been disclosed to the Company;
No of shares %

Rufler LLP 3,187,405 99
Investec Asset Management Linuted 3,082,765 96
Massachusetts Financlal Services Company 2,044,385 6.4
Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited 1,865,218 58
Schroders ple 1,677,861 52
Aberforth Partners LLP 1,636,300 51
Artemis Investment Management LLP 1,620,001 50
FIL Limited 1,516,682 47

The Company has not been notifled of any other substantial sharetwoldings other than those of the directors, which are disclosed in the
remuneration report on page 27,

Ohvidends
Dividends of 40 pence per share (2015 52 pencs) were pald during the year (£12 B mdllon; 2015. £16.6 million)

Directoss
The present directors of the Company are listed on page 30 All of the directors were members of the board throughout the year and up to
the date of signing the financial statements,

Under the Company’s articles of asseciation one third of the directors are reguired to retire by rotation at each annual general megting
{"AGM'). Those who retire are the longest in office since their election or last re-election Under this formula, at thes year's AGM, two
directars require re-election In addition, as a resuit of therr long service, non-executive directors THF Kirby, CJ Myatt and N J Donaldson
are required to retire and are seeking re-election. In relation to the non-executive directors, the chairman has confirmed that, following
formal performance evaluation, the perfarmance of C ] Myatt, N ) Donaldson and € O'Donnell continues to be effective and they continue
to demonstrate commitment to their roles as non-executive directors, including commitment of the necessary time to board and
committee meetings and other duties CJ Myatt and N § Donaldson are considered by the board to be independent of the Group, as set out
in the corporate governance report. The non-executive directors have formafly evatuated the parformance of TH F Kirby as non-executive
chairman and cansider him to be effective in his role; T H £ Kirby Is not considered tndependent of the Group grven his previous execut ve
roles within the Campany.

Directors’ interests

The mterasts of the directors in the shares of the Company, together with details of share options granted to the directors, are disclosed In
the remuneration report on page 27. Nona of the directors had a material interest In any contract of significance to which the Company, ar
any of its subsidianies, was a party during the year.

Directors’ indemnitles
The Company has made qualifying third party Indemnity provisians for the benefit of its directors, as permitted by section 234 of tha
Companies Act 2006, which were In force during the year and up to 25 July 2016

Information on exetutive directors

K D Rountree (age 46}, CEQ Kevin |oined Games Workshop in March 1998 as assistant group accountant. Ha then had varlous management
foles within Games Workshop, including head of sales for the Other Actmties division {including Black Library, |lcensing and Sabertooth
Games) Kevinwas appointed CFQ In October 2008 During the year ended 29 May 2011, he took on the responsibility of managing the
Graup's service centres globally. To reflect this, his titte was changed to chief operating officer from chief financia! officer, He became chief
executive on 1 January 2015. He qualified as & chartered management accountant in August 2001. Prior to joining Games Workshap, Kevin
was the management accountant at | Barbour & Sons Limited and trained at Price Waterhouse
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information an exeautive directors continued

R F Tongue (age 45), graup finance director and company secretary. Rachel joined Games Warkshop In September 1986 as group tax
manager She then had varlous accounting roles within Games Workshop and was appointed company secretary in Octaber 2008, She has
also managed the legal and compliance functions within Games Workshop since November 2012 She was appomted group finance
director in lanuary 2015. Rachel qualfied as a chartered accountant in 1995 and as a chartered tax adviser In 1995 having trained with
Arthur Andersen

Informaticn on non-executive direciors

T H F Kirby {age 66), non executive chalrman. Tom Kirby joined Games Workshop In April 1586 as general manager and led the
management buy out In December 1991, becoming chief executive at that time Between 1998 and 2000 he took on the rote of non-
executive chalrman, retuming to the role of chiefl executive in September 2000. He performed the rofe of chalrman from December 2007
1o January 2013 when he became chalrman and acting CEO Following the appointment of Kevin Rountree as CEO wth effect from 1
lanuary 2015, Tom became non-executive chairman of the Company Prior to jolning Games Workshop, Tom worked for s years for a
distnbutor of fantasy games in the UK and was previcusly an inspector of taxes

C ) Myatt {age 72) Chris Myatt is the senlor independent director, joining the board on 18 April 1996, He was formerly managing dwector
of a diviston of Tarmac PLC, chalrman and nan-executive director of a number of manufacturmng companies and treasurer of Keele
Unlversity

N ) Donaldson {age 62). Nick Donatdson was appointed to the board on 18 April 2002 A barrister by profession, Nick is a partner of tondon
Bridge Capital Partners LLP, Nick was, until 2003, head of corporate finance at Arbuthnot Securities Limited and previously held senlor
investment banking positlons at Rabert W Baird Limited and at Credit Lyonnals Securities. He 1s chairman of DP Poland PLC and a director
of The Futham Shore pic.

E O'Donnell {age 45) £lalne O'Donnell was appolnted to the board an 28 November 2013 A chartered accountant by profession, untd
recantly Elzine was a corporate finance partner with EY She is also a non-executive director/trustee of The Manufacturing Institute.

Auditors

As at 25 July 2016, so far as each director Is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and each
directar has taken all steps that he/she cught to have taken as a director in order to make himse!f fherself aware of any relevant audit
informaton and to establish that the auditors are aware of that Information

Share capital, share rights and other information

As at 22 July 2016, the Company's authorised share capital was £2,100,000 divided mitc 42,000,000 ardinary shares of Sp each nominal
value ("ordinary shares’). On 22 july 2016 there were 32,120,708 {2015 32,063,812) ord nary shares in issue These ordinary shares are
listed on the London Stock Exchange All ord.nary shares rank egually with respect to voting nghts and the night to receive dwdends
Shares acquired through the Company's share schemes rank part passu with the shares inissue and have no special rights The holders of
ordinary shares are entitled to recetve the Company’s annual report, to attend and speak at general meetings of tha Company, to sppoint
prowes and to exercise voting nghts There are no restrictions on transfer or imitations on the holding of any class of share and no
requirements for prior approva! of any transfers The directors may refuse to register a transfer of shares if there Is a failure to comply with
certain reguirements of the Company's artides of association. Hone of the shares earry any speoial rights with regard to control of the

Company

In accordance with the Company’s articles of assoclations, each share (other than those held in treasury) entitles the holder to one vote at
general meetings of the Company on votes taken on a poll. On a show of hands at a meeting, every member present in person or by one or
more proxies and entitled to vote has one vote, Unless the directors decide otherwise, if a shareholder 15 given notice that he has fated to
provide information required in relatlon ta any shares pursuant to a notice under section 793 of the Compamies Act 2006, that member will
be unable to vote on those shares both in a general meeting and at a meeting of the sharcholders of that class. If such shareholder holds
more than G 25% of the issued shares of a dass (excluding treasury shares) and is in default of a section 793 notice, the directors may also
state in the notice that (i) the payment of any dwidend shall be withheld, and (i) that there can be no transfer of the shares held by such
shareholder,

Subject to the provision of law, the Company may by ardinary resofution declare a dividend ta be paid 10 the members according to thelr
respective rights and Interest, but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the directors The directors may also declare and
pay interim dividends Subject to shareholder approval, the directors may pay dividends by Issuing shares credited as fully pald up in heu of
cash dividends If dividends remain unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited 2nd revert to the Company

A director appointed by the board holds offtce only unti the next AGM At each AGM one third of the directors wiil retire by rotation and
be eligible for re-election The directors to retira will ba those who wish to retire and those who have been longest 1n office since thelr fast
appaintment or re-appointment.

The rules about the appointment and replacement of directors are contained In the Company’s artictes of associatton The Company's
artictes of assotiation state that a director may be appointed by an ardinary resolution of the shareholders ar by the directors, either to fil}
avacancy of as an additron to the existing board but so that the total number of directors does not exceed the maximum number of
directors aflowed pursuant to the Company’s articles of associatian, The Company’s articles of associatian do not currently specify a
maximurm number of directars The Company may by ordinary resolution remove 8 director from the board of directars,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Share capital, share rights and other Information continued

The Company's articles of assaclation also state that the board of direttors is responsible {or the management of the business of the
Company and in doing s0 may exarcie all the powers of the Company subject to the pravision of relevant legislation and the
Company's constitutional documentation, The powers of the directors set out in the Company’s artictes of association indude those in
relation to the 1ssue and buy-back of shares. As at 29 May 2016, the Company had an unexpired authotity to repurchase shares up to a
maximum of 4,777,507 shares During the year no shares were purchased in the market for cancellation.

Changes to the articles of assaclation must be approved by the shareholders In accordance with the legislation in force from time to time

The Company does not have agreements with any director or employee that would prowde compensation for loss of office or employment
resylting from a takeover, except that the provisions of the Company’s sharesave scheme may cause options to be exerclsed in a takeover.

Constructive use of the AGM

The chairmen of the audit, the City and the remuneration and nomination committees will be avallable to answer questions at the AGM
Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meet.ng and the chalrman of the Campany will declare the
number of proxy votes received both for and against each resolut on.

Corporate governance
The Company s statement on corporate governance 15 inctuded In the corporate governance report on pages 17 to 20

Health, safety and environment
Games Workshap Is fufly comnuitted to the safety of our customers and the safety, health and wellbeing of cur employees Qur people are
our most valuable asset. We care about our colleagues and want to look after them.

Over the past 12 months the health, safety and environment team has benefited from the addition of further expertise and experience. We
continue to develop, improve and enhance the health and safety standards of our manufacturing, engineering and warehousing operations
in Notingham, and we continue to develop the global standards which will form the basis of a co-ordinated health, safety and
environmental strategy across the Graup These global standards will be fully rmplemented across the business in the next 12 months

Injury reporting
During the year there were 10 injuries reported under the Reporting of injuries, D'seases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013

{(‘'RIDDOR’} in the UK {2015- 4} and 5 recardable cases reported to the US Occupational Safety and Health Administration {2015, 3) The
Increase in the number of RIDDOR reports Is reflective of an increasing awareness of health and safety matters

Greenhousa gas emissions 1
Under the Greenhouse Gas Emisslons {Directors’ Reparts) Regulations 2013, enforced under the Companles Act 2006, we have addressed

our Greenhouse Gas {'GHG'} reperting requiremants.

We have used the methodology described In the Environmental Reporting Guideknes fram DEFRA to identlfy our GHG Inventary of Scope 1
{direct} and Scope 2 {indirect) global CO2 emissions. We have cansudered the six main GHGs and reportin CO2 equivalent Our data
includes all manufactunng, office and retail sites controlled globally by Games Workshop for the year to 29 May 2016 All calculations have
used the 2013 DEFRA conversion factors

» Scape 1 covers activities owned or controfled by Games Warkshop that release emissions straight into the atmosphere - gas botlers,
vehicle operatton, air conditioning.

¢ Scope 2 covers activibies that are not owned or contralled by Games Workshap but which create ernissrons as a result of our activites -
electrnicity consumption

2015/16 2014115
Scope 1 - tonnes C02e 580 685
Scope 2 - tonnes C02e 4,766 4,579
Total tonnes CO2e 5,346 5,254
Tonnes CO2e per sq metre 0.077 0,083
Tonnes CO2e per £000 of revenue 0045 0044

In response to an ESOS energy audit of the Lenton site, the ENERGY16 Initiative was launched in February 2016 with the aim of reduc ng
our energy usage on the Lenton site by aver 5% by the end of January 2017 Thisis being achieved by tracking energy usage, a staff
engagement campaign to reduce energy consumption and the fitting of low energy equipment across the site,
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Waste management
We sent 67% of our waste hy welght from our Nottingham site for re-use ar recycling (2015 64%) 33% of our waste was sent far heat
recavery at the Nottingham City Counci incinerator (2015 36%)

Nottingham workplace parking levy and trave! to work
Games Workshap will continue its policy of not recharging employees the Workplace Parking Levy {which Increased by 15 In April 2016 to

£379 per year for each used workplace parking space) We continue to promote our cycle to work scheme and have a hugh ratio of cyclists
{over 10% of employees) at our Nottingham site. 5 nce it launch on site in October 2015, over 650 members of staff have enjoyed the
benefits of subsidised trave! via the Nottingham tram2work scheme.

Employees

The Group's pollcy is to consult on and discuss with employees, at meetings, matters likely to affect employees’ interests. Information on
matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to achieve a common awareness on the
pant of all employees of the financal and econorm:c factors affecting the Group's performance

With effect from Apnl 2016, the Group adopted the UK Living Wage for alf UK employees regardless of age

The Group operates an employee sharasave scheme as a means of further encouraging the invoivement of employees in the Group's
performance,

The Group's palicy is to consider, for recruitment, disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill. AH necessary assistance
with training courses is given. Once employed, a career plan is developed 50 as to ensure suitable opportunities for each disatled person
Arrangements are made, wherever posyble, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as
appropriate to their aptitudas and abilities.

Diverslty

The board has noted the changes ta the UK Corparate Governance Cade {the ‘Code’} announced by the FRC in October 2011 to strengthen
the principle of boardroom diversity, which was first intraduced into the Code in June 2010 The board believes that business can benefit
from a wide range of perspectives and backgrounds. The Company’s atm as regards compasition of the board 1s that it should have a
balance af attitudes and knowledge to enable each director and the board a3 a whole to discharge thelr duties effectvely. The Company
does not consider that diversity can be best achieved by establishing specific quotas and targets and appaintments will continue to be
made based on ment.

As at 29 May 2016, the workforce is comprised as follows

Male Female Total
The board 4 2 6
Senior management 6 1 7
Total workiorce 1,441 304 1,745

Sodal, community and human rights

The Group has policies that encompass a set of global saurcing principles caverng fair terms of emplayment, human rights, health and
safety, equat opportunitres and good environmental practice We seek to work with suppliers who adopt an ethical approach to human
nghts, working conditicns and the environment in line w.th our own values, Qur buyers are required to review supplier compliance with
these policies, identify any areas of non-conformance and take actitn where apprapriate The Group momtors the quakity and avallability
of all sourced compenents to ensure high stendards are maintained.

Emplayees cantinue to carry aut fund ralsing events for thewr chosen charitles. Although we have decided that we will no longer make cash
donations to charities, we are fully supportive of the wark our employees do. There are no donations to polltical parties.

Research and development
The Group does not undertake research activitles Development activities refate to the development of new product lines. The charge to
the income statement for the year in respect of development activitles s deta led In note 9 to the financia! statements

Future developments
The futura developmems for the Group are discussed In the strategic report on pages 4 to 11.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Gaing concern and viahility statement

Assessment of prospects

The Group operates a strateglc planning process which includes quarterly reviews of business and financial performance, menthly financial
projections and an annual planning review for the next financial year Medlum termn projections (for periods ending two years and three
years hence} are extrapolated from the plan for the following financial year taking into account known strategy changes. This strategic
planning process Is managed cemrally, led by the finance director

Assessment of viabllity
The strategic plan reflects the directors’ cautious view of possible outcomes. It is not used to set targets for performance

The viabliity assessment has been canducted for a perlod of three years which Is In line with the Group’s strategic planning period.
in making the viability assessment the principal risks facing the business have been considered and a number of severa but plausible
scenarlos assessed for the impact of these on the medium term projections. The scenarios tested include.

*  Aslgnificant interruption in the supply chain impacting the manufacturing operatlons
*  Aglobal shartage In avallabllity of plastic raw materlals
*  Afallure in the existing ERP system before the new ERP system goes live

Viabllity statement
Based an the board’s assessment as described above, the directors confirm that they have a reasanable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue In operatlon and meet Its Rabliitles as they fail due over the three year pericd ending May 2019.

Going concern

After making appropnate enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for at least twetve months fram the date of approval of the financial statements, For this
reasan they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

By order of the board

Group financé€ director and company secretary
25 luly 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The tisting Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority require hsted companies to disclose, m relation to section & of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014 (the ‘Code’), how they have applied its principles and whether they have complied with its prov:sions throughout
the accounting period The UK Corparate Governance Code can be found at wwew.fre.crg uk

This statement, together with the remuneration report on pages 21 to 28, explains how the Company has apphed the principles and
complled with the provistons set out in the Code

The board operates through monthly meetings which senior executives attend on a regular basis The board operates primarily through its
monthly meetings and is responsible for leading and controlling the Group and monitoring executive management. It considers ail 1ssues
relating to strategy, direction and future direction of the Company The board has a schedule of matters reserved to it for decision that is
regularly updated; these Include dedisions on the Group’s strategy, financial plans, major capital expenditure and drvidend policy The
board Is updated about operational decisions through the monthly meetings. It meets at least nine times a year |n 2015/16 the board had
10 scheduled meetings, each of which was attended by all members of the board Terms of reference for the board committees (as set out
below) are avatlable on the Company’s website.

The Company maintains an appropnate level of director and officer liability nsurance cover and has agreed to indemnify the directors
against centaln [labilities as discussed In the directors’ report on page 12.

A review of the performance of the Group's main business activities Is Included in the strategic review. The board presents this review,
together with the directors’ report on pages 12 to 16, ta give a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position and

prospects,

The board

The board comprises the chairman, the CEQ, the group finance director and three non-executive directors It Is chatred by the chairman,
THF Krby, This arrangement does not comgly with provision A.3 1 of the Code as T H F Kirby doss not meet the independence critena set
out In the Code as he was formerly the Company's acting CEQ

The senior independent director is C J Myatt. His pnncipal responsiblilities include

* tobe available to sharehclders if they have concems which contact through the normal channels of the chalrman, the CEQ
or the group finance director has failed to resoive, ar for whsch such contact is not appropniate
® toensure that the performance evaluation of the chairman is conducted effectively

The four non-executive directors have a breadth of successful commercral and professional experience and are considered by the board to
be independent of the Group (excluding the chairman) The Code statss that the board should identify each non-executive director it
considers to be independent, and the Code then lists vanous circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination This Includes
(amongst others) If the non-executive director has served on the board for mare than nine years.

At Games Workshap the board has had to confront ana of thesa circumstances as two of the non-executive directars, CJ Myatt and NJ
Danaldson, have served for more than nine years

In making this assessment as to independence, the board has taken Inta actount the personal attributes of each divectar in relation to the
current and future needs of the board In the opinion of the board, independence (fike Judgement and wisdem) is not an attribute which
can be measured by reference to a checklist. It 1s rather an attribute which the members of the board can observe betng demenstrated by
a director in his actlans and interactions with cther members of the board as it faces the various Issues which are placed before it.
Independence Is the absence of complacency, lazy thinking and acceptance of the status quo.

Regarding the specific Code circumstance of service of over mne years, the board's position Is as follows:

The ‘nine year rule’ ls a helpful guida to the risk of directors becoming 'stale’. The board considers thss nisk peradically, but has not yet
found it to be an issue at Games Workshop If it did, tt would react accordingly At present the board feels that the requirement for
members of the board to havs a real understanding of, and empathy with, the Games Workshop Habby to be a point in favour of retaming
the experience which the board currently has

Based upon Its assessment, which focusses on each director’s attitude towards making his best contribution to the progress of the
Company, the board cornsiders that both of these non-executive directors are independent.

All directors bnng an independent Judgement to bear an Issues of strategy, perfoermance, resources {including key appointments) and

standards of conduct The board considers that it has been supplied with sufficlent timely and aceurate infarmation to enable it to
discharge its dutees,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

The board continued

All members of the board have access to the services and advice of the rompany secretary, There |s a procedure for directors to take
Independent profesnional advice at the Company’s expense where refevant to the execution of their dutres. The executive directors attach
great nportance to ensuring that the non-executwe directors are provided with accurats, tunely and dear information on the Group. tn
addition, the nan executive directors are actively encouraged to update continually thew knowfedge of and familianty with the Group and
the issues affecting [t, so as to enable them to fulfil effectvely their roles on both the board and its committees

The board has established a process for the ongoing assessment of its own performance and that of its committees The board has
compieted an internal review process to determine and define the role that the board gerforms; an intemnal aszessment has been
undertaken to review the board's performance against those objectives and tus will continue in 2016/17. This will be an lterative process
which wil! Inform the board’s development agenda on a regular bas s.

Board comnuttees

The board has three prnopal committees, all with written verms of reference which are published on the Company’s website and which
are available an appl cation to the company secretary at the Company’s reglsterad office. The company secretary serves as secretary to alf
three committees. The chalirimen of the audit, the Oty and the remuneration and nomination commttees will be available to answer
questions at the Company’s annual general meeting

Audit committee

Tha audit committee comprises the three non-executive directors and the chamman of the Comipany under the chalrmanship of C 1 Myatt,
who 13 a chertered management accountant and has significant relevant financial and accounting knowledge and expenence The audit
committee’s terms of reference incdude monitoring the appropriateness of accounting policles, financial reporting, internal control and risk
assessment and keeping under review the scope, results and effectivensess of the external and internal audits and the Independence of the
Company's external auditors.

Significent Issues considered by the audit committee

Tha committee had four meet:ngs during the year which were attended by all members of the commatee It has an agenda linked to the
events in the Group's financial calendar The extemal auditors met with the committee without management being present and the
chairman and members of the committee have direct contact with the audit partner as required Dyring the year the committee.

+ reviewed the half-year and full-year results

« recened and considered, as part of the review of the annual financial statements, reports fram the external auditors in respect of the
auditors’ audit plan for the year and the results of the annual audit These reports included the scope of the annual audit, the approach
adopted by the auditors to address and conclude upon key estimates and other key audit areas, the basis on which the auditors assess
materlality, the terms of engagement for the audrtars and an ongoing assessment of the impact of future accounting developments on
the Group

+ considered whether the annua! report is fav, balanced and understandable in doing so, the committee reviewed and discussed with
management the content and appropriateness of the infarmation included with'n the 2016 annual report This provided the committee
with the supporting detail to ensure that [t was in a position to report to the board that the 2016 annua! report taken as a whole was
fair, balanced and understandable. This was an the basis that the business description, business modet and strategy agreed with its
own understanding of the Groug, and the balance in the reporting of performance reflacted bath positive and asgatore issues and
reftected the Group’s actvities during the year

* consldered the effectiveness and Independence of the external auditors and made 8 recommendation to the board regarding the re-
appointment of PncewaterhauseCoopers LLP as external auditors

= reviewed the Company's polity on non-audit fees and ensured appropriate safeguards are in piace

+ considered and agreed the Internal audit work programme and recerved regutar reports on the key issues arising from its
implementation during the year

» reviewed reparts on the key business risks, incfuding a review of the internal control processes used to kientify, menitor and mit:gate
the prnindpal risks and uncertamnties

The committee recelved, reviewed and challenged reports fram management and the external auditors setting out the significant issues in
refation to the 2016 annual report and made thelr own assessment. These Issues were discussed and challenged with management dunng
the year. They were also discussed with the auditors at the time the commilttee reviewed and agread the auditors’ Group audit plan and at
the conclusion of the audit of the financial statements The issues that were discussed were

* Inventory provisions the committee considered and agreed that the inventary pravisions were appraprlate given the robust formulaic
pracess apphed and the level of nsk

» Capitahsation of development tosts the committee reviewed the accounting and disciosure of developrnent costs and concluded that
this was appropnate but that management should continue to monitor this dosely In the context of praduct release cycles and
underlying sales trends
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Significant issues considered by the audit committer continued

The committee reviews the independence of the externat auditors by assessing the arrangements for the day to day management of the
audit relationship as well as reviewing the auditors’ report which describes their procedures for identifying and reporting conflicts of
Interest Ta maintain the auditors’ Independence, the committee has alsa established the policy that the primary role of the external
auditors Is to perform sennces directly retated to their autit responsibilities. Non-audit fees paid to the auditars are therefore minimal and
ampounted to £9,000 In the year, this refates to the venfication of retail turnover certificates for certain stores. The Group uses ather
adwsers lor taxation advice and other services The audit fees are disclosed In note 9

The committes calls upon the external auditors, the internal auditors and the executive directors to attend formal meetings as required
These meetings are held at least three times a year The external and internal auditors are given the opportunity to ralse any matters or
concerts they may have In the absence of the axecutive directors at separate meetings with the audit committer or lts chalrman.

The audit committee considers the re-appointment of the external auditors each year, as well as remuneration and other terms of
engagement PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have acted as external auditers of the Group since the 2005 year end Andrew Lyon is the audit
partner and he was appointed during 2014/15 and will rotaie after five years. in 2024/15 the external audit was put out to tender and the
committee agreed that PricewaterhouseCoopers should remain as auditor There are no contractual obligat.ons which restnct the chaice of
external auditors

Whistleblowing
The audit committes Is responsible for the review of the Campany’s procedures for responding to the allegatians of whistleblowers and the

arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise concems about possible financial reporting Irregularities

City committee

The Clty committee comprises the non-executve directors and is chaired by N § Donaldson. It normally meets at least twice a year and is
sesponsible for corporate govemance, lnvestor refations, City presentations and liaison with Clty advisers. The Ciy committee held two
meetings during the year, each of which was attendad by all members of the committee

Remuneration and nomination commitiee

The remuneration and nommation committee comprises the non-executive directors and Is chatred by N J Donaldson. It normally meets at
least twice a year and is responsible for making recommendations to the board on remuneration policy for all executive directors [including
determining spedfic remuneration packages, terms of employment and performance incentive arrangements) It Is also responsibie for
naminating, for approval by the board, candidates for appointment to the board. The procedures and guidelines used by the remuneration
and nomination committee in determining remuneration are outlined in the separate remuneration report The remuneration and
nomination committee heid three meetings in the year, which were attended by all members of the commttee The committee meets
without the executive directors at least annually to appraise the executwve directors’ parfarmance,

Appointmants to the board
Any director appointed during the year is required, under the provisions of the Company’s articies of association, to retire and seek
election by the shareholders at the next AGM,

Interngl control

The directors recognise that they have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a sound system of internal contro! to
safeguard shareholders’ Investment and the Group’s assets, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system is desgned to manage risks
that may prevent the Group from achieving its business objectives, rather than to eliminate these risks However, even the most effective
system can provide only reasonable, and nat absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the sigificant risks faced by the Group, which
has been in place from the start of the year untii the date of approval of this report. This process is regularly reviewed by the board
throughout the period 1n accordance with the document ‘Intamat Contral Revised Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’ {the
revised Turnbull guidance)

The effectiveness of the Group's system of intemal control 15 continuously reviewed by the board The review covers all matenal cantrols,
Including financial, operattonat and compliance controls and nsk management. The monitoring of control procedures Is achieved through
regular review by the group finance director, reporting to the board This review process considers whether significant risks have been
identified, evaluated and controlled and whather any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a need for mare
extensive monltonng Regular reporting by senior management ensures that, as far a5 possible, the controls and safeguards are being
operated appropriately This pracess Is considered by the audit committee, alongside the external auditors’ reports

The Group has continued its programme of internal audit reviews dunng the year. The audit committes agrees an annual internal audit
plan, focusing an business specific issues Actions agreed by management, In response to recommendations made, are foilowed up

The board, with advice from the audit commuttee, has completed its annual review of the system of Intermal control in accordance with the
guldance as set out In the revised Turnbull guidance, and is satisfied that it has acted appropnately and in accordance with that gudance
During the course of its review of the system of internal control, the board has not identified nor been advised of any faillings or
weaknesses which it has determined to be significant. Therefare a confirmation in respect of necessary actions is not considered

appropnate
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Communication with shareholders

The Campany attaches great importance to ks AGM, which it considers to be the primary platform of communication batween the
Company and Its shareholders. On a continuing basls the Company encourages two way communication with its Institutional and private
shareholders and responds promptly to queries received verbatly, in writing or directly through ks investor retations website
investor.games-workshop.com.

The CEO and group finance director are avaflable to meet with shareholders in Nottingham to distuss any rssuss which shareholders may
have. Any Issues arising at such meetings are reported to and considered by the board.

Remuneration report
The Company’s pollcy on executive remuneration and details of the executive directors’ salaries, profit share and pensians, and fees for the
non-executive directors are set out In the board report an remuneraticn on pages 21 to 28

Conflicts of Interests

The Company's articles of assaciation take account of certain provisions of the Companies Act 2006 relating to directors’ conflicts of
interests. These provisions permit the board to consider, and If thought fit, to authonse situatians where a director has an interest that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company. The board has adopted procedures for the approval of such conflicts
The board’s powers to authuorise conllicts are operating effectively and the procedures are being followed.

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
With the exception of provision of A.3 1, the Company has complled with all of the provisions set gut in section 1 of the Code,

By order of the board
AT

R F Tongue

Group finance or and company secretary

25 July 2016
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REMUNERATION REPORT

fntroduct'on

The remunerdtion report (ar Lhe year ended 29 May 2016 has been prepared on behalf of the board by the ramuneration and nonieation
commutter In accordance with the requirements of the Campanles Act 2006 and ScHedule B of the Large and Medium-sized Companles and
Groups (Atcounts and Reponts] Regulations 2008, as amendud, and meets the retevant requirements of the Listing Rutes of the Finangual
Conduct Authonty and the UK Carporate Gavernance Coda.

Thss remuneration report 1s split inte fwo parts

* The directars’ remuneration pelicy, which sets cut the Company's proposed pol cy on directors’ remansration, which touk cifect from
the 7015 annual general macting {AGM’} and the key factors which were tzken Into account in setting the policy The committee has
taken note of some shareholders' contermn over the Company's abliity 16 piv non caetutive hirectors consulianty fecs m cenam
circtimstances ~ a permission which was granted by shareholders at the 2015 AGM - and I3 therefore proposing that this permission
should be withdrawn. The directars’ renwneration palicy, revited by the reroval of this permission but otherwase unchanged, will
therefore be subject 10 a binding vote al the 2016 AGM. The palicy will then be subject to o binding shareholder vote at Jeast svery
three years

¢ The anwal report on remuncration, which sots out payments made tn exec stve directors and non-esecutive directors and detath the
1elstionsinp batween company performance ang remuneration for the 201%/16 financlal yeas The 2015/16 repon will be subect ta an
advisory vote at the 2016 AGM

2015/16 ~ a year in raview

As deseribad in last year's annual repent, X 0 Rountiee 2nd R © Tongue the Company’s CEC and grotip baunce diecion and campany
secrotaly ruspectively, were appainted with effect from X lanuary 2015 They have therefore fecently completed ther first full year [n
thase roles they have had a buty ime, unning the business diy-to-day alongside changing how il operates in actordance with the
strategy agreed by the board

As anticipated In fast year's remunerstion report, the commities reviewnd the baso salaries payabla to the executive d rectors at the end
of the 2015/16 financial yrar. 10 assist {n this review the committee agaks appainted Innecto Reward Consulting ['innecto’), a
remuneration consultancy which the Company last appointed In Mdy 2013, to conduct an externas pay benchmarking exercise. Faliowing
the presentaton by innecto of its report and discusswen within the committtee of the Company, the committee has resoived to lncrease (b
salary of R ¥ Yongue to £220,000 fram July 2016, No other changes to board remuneration have been made. Tha cammitiee proposes to
teview the base salaries payable 1o the executive directors at or about the end of the 2016/17 financlal year. In condueting such reviews
the commitiee seeks to take Intg 2ccount, Bmong ather factors, corporate perfarmance on envircamental, sotfal and governance rssuet

Ay described above in this report, In the light of some sharehoiders’ toncam over the Comgany’s payment of consultancy feesto THF
Kirby, the Company's nen exezutive chafrman, this arrangement was torminated In January 2016 with effect from 1 Janvary 2016 THF
Kirby receives a fixed annual fee of £250,000 [previously £200,000}, mling account of the addi*ional services he provides to the Campany
beyond those wiuch wouid normal y be expected of a non-executive chabrman, Between March 2015 and Decamber 2015 TN F Xirky
recewved corsultancy fees totalling £60,000 No other cansultancy fees have been pald by the Company to any of the other non-executne
directors of the Company

2016/17 - the year ahead

The commimiee rematis very mueh awara of the impartance 1o the Company and its sharenolders of the successful transfer of power and
responsibility to the new executive baard team. We beleve that the tram is making salid progress, enjoying the support of the Games
Workshog warkforce.

A} noted above in the chalrman's preamble, the board takes seriously its responsibilities In applylng the anneiples of UK corporate
guvernance, Praperly Incentivning executive directars, and senkxr menagement generally, forms part of this area of focus. The board has
from time to tme ducussed the deumbilty of intraducing thare Incentive and/ar bonus schemras for sentar managers; it is prasaatly
satistied that the exsting - group wide - scheme which a Jows all employees to share in profitable growth works well within the Group ftis
thrrefore a key respondhbilily of the committee that the sal3rirs of senior management are set at tha correct {evels, properly reflecting the
value of the contnibution and effart made to the Company The committee beilsvas that the kength of service with the Company
domansirated by the executive directurs - and many sentor managers - s some evidence of the fact that compersation tevals have been

sel appropnately

Looking to the future, the commitiee will contiiue to mardtor the consistenty of semuneration policy across the Group with a viaw Lo
eisuring thet an appraprlate reward structure exlsts to recognisa and retsln the Group's tcp talent As part of this protess the cornmuittee
wul continue to keep unders review and ducuss regulacty the eflectiveness of the Company’s approsch to remuneretion and its companent

" Mo 32~

NJ Donaldson
Chairman
flemuneratiun and nomination committce
25 luly 2016
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Policy report
This part of the repost sets out the directors’ remuneration policy, which has applied since the AGM heid on 16 Segternber 2015 where it

was approved by shareholders The palicy wil apply untd the AGM tn 2018 {unless revised by a vote of shareheiders before that time) save
that at this year's AGM there will be a resclutlon proposed to remove the amendment that was made in 2015 to the remuneration policy
regarding paying censultancy fees to non-executive directars in drcumnstances in which they provide to the Company (at the request of the
Company) additional services.

Games Workshop Is a most individual business We have a simpie strategy: to make the best fantasy mintatures In the world and sell them
globally at a profit and we intend to do this forever We embrace long term thinking, 2nd hence we do not operate bonus schemes of the
usual kind or incentive schemes as we belleve they can sow the seeds of short-termism We seek to pay the right remuneration for the job
- aur real 'bonus’ is the opportunity to work at Games Workshop and grow the business

The a.m of the Group's remuneration policy is to reward falrly and to attract, motivate and retaln high quallty management. The total size
of the remuneration package lor executive directors is judged by companson with the remuneration packages of similar companies, having
regard to

the slze of the company, its tumover, profits and number of people employed
the dversity and complexity of the business

the geographical spread of the business
the growth and expansion profife

The Company's non-executive directors are remunerated with fees in line with market rates. They do not receive any pension or other
benefits, other than the relmbursement of reasonable expenses, and they do not particspate tn 2ny honus or chare schemes.

Remuneration policy table
The table below summarises each of the components of the remuneration package for directors of the Campany which camprise the

polcy The commitiee may make minor changes to the policy, which do not have a materia! advantage to the directors, 1o aid its operation
or implementation, takmg account of the interests of sharehglders but without the need to seek shareholder approval

Purpoase and link to

Component strategy Cperation Maximum potential value Performance metrics
Salary Core element of fixed Rewviewed annually and There i$ no prescnbed Not apphcable, although
remurnieration, reflecting usually fixed for 12 months  maximum annual increase the indwidual's
the size and scope of the from 1June. There isno in salary cantribution and overall
role, entitlement to an annual performance is one of the

Purposa |5 to recrult and
retzin directors of the
calibre required for the
business
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ncrease,

Takes into cansideration the
director’'s rale and attitudes

Takes into account
prevaihng market conditions

Salarles are reviewed
taking into consideration
safary increases across the
Group,

increases out of line with
the workfarce are carefully

and is aligned with staff pay  considered but may be
reviews awarded taking zll relevant
factors Into account, for

Extemnally benchmarked by

example, increases in

independent remuneration  scope and responsibility or
consultants from time to salary falling significantly
time against companiesofa  belaw market positiomng

similar uze and complexity

cansiderations in
determining the lavel of
any salary increase




Remuneration policy table continued

Purpose and link to

Component strategy Operation Maximum potentlat value Performance metrics

Benefits Ensures the overall The executive directors Set at a level which the Not apphcable
package ts competitive each receive life assurance committee cansiders

cover appropriate against the
Purpose Is to recruit and market and provides a
retain directors of the The sharesave scheme is a sufficient leve! of benefit
calibre required for the HMRC approved monthly based on individual
business, savings scheme farilitating crcumstances,

the purchase of shares at a
Partiapatson in the discount Sharesave contributions
sharesave scheme creates are as permitted in
staff alignment with the Where apprapriate other accordance with the
Group and promotes a benefits may be oHered relevant tax legisiation.
sense of ownershup including atfowances for

relocation and other

expatriate benefits

Pension To prowide cost effective Participation in a group Upto7.5% of salaryupto  Not applicable
retirement benefits personal pension scheme 3 maximum of £10,000 per

annum. Following the
recent changes In pension
tapering, any excess
batween 7 5% of salary
and £10,000 s pald as
additional salary {net of
employers’ national
insurance}

Profit share Rewards performance Targets are set annually and  Maximum potentialvalue  The finandial target is
against annual targets any pay out Is determined is £250 per person per based on growth m sales
linked to the ach:evement by the committee after the year. revenue,
aof sales growth. penod end, based on

performance against those Payments range from nil to

targe's £250 dependent on the
level of Increase In sales

All staff participate equally revenue from the prior

in the scheme. year

Awards are payable In cash,

Norrexecutive Sole element of non- fees are reviewed annually  Fees are based onthe level  Not applicable

directors’ fees exetutive director taking into account time of fees paid to nan-
remuneration set at a level commitment, executive directors serving
that reflects market responsibilities and fees on boards of histed
condhitions. pald by comparable companies of a similar size

companies. and complexity

Additional fees are pait to
the senor independent
director to reflect additlional
responsibilities.

Non-executive directors are
entitled to claim reasonable
out of pocket expenses in
connactian with the
performance of their dutles
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Explanation of the performance metrics chosen
The performance measures selected are aligned with the Company’s strategy and business objectives. The profit share Is based on growth
In sates revenue,

llhustration of application of the policy

Fhe charts below show the relative spllt of remuneration between fixed pay {base salary, benefits and pension) and variable pay (profit
share) for each executive director on the basis of minimum remuneration, remunerahon recelvabie for performance in line with the
Company’s expectations and maximum remuneration

K D Rountree R F Tangue

500 + DFixed QVariable 500 1 UFixed D Variable

400 - 400 -

402 402 ane
300 - 300
200 | 20 |
193 193 193
100 A 100
0 T T ! 0 T v 1
Flxed pay Target Madmum Fixed pay Target Maximum

Miimum In Hne with expectations Maxamum

Fined pay Fixed elerments of salary, As per minimum As per memmum
benefits and penslon Salary is at
29 May 2016 and the vaiue of
benefits has been assumed to be
equivalent to that included n
the singie figure remuneratian
table on page 25

Profit share N Up to £100 per annum £250 per annum

Differences i policy from the wider employer population

The Company aims to provide a remuneration package that is market competitive, complies with any statutory requirements and is applied
fairly and equitably across the wider employee population Where remuneration is not determined by statutory regulation, the Company
operates the same core principles as it does for the executive directors, nameby;

to remunerate people in a manner that allows for stability of the business and the opportunity for sustainable long term growth
to seek to remunerate fairly and consistently for each role with due regard to the markes place and internal consistency

to apply the profit share equally to all employees, incduding the executive directors

to encourage employees t0 own shares through the operation of the sharesave scheme

Remuneration policy for new directors

When seting the remunsration package for a new executive director, the committee would seek to apply the same principles and
implement the policy framework as set out above. Base salary will be set at a level appropriate to the role and the experience of the
director being appointed Benefits, panston and profit share will be In line with the stated policy Any buy-out award, should ane be
required, would be imited to the amount of salary that would be forgone.

Non-executive director fees will be set at a competitive market tevel, reflecting the skills, knowledge, experience, rasponsibilities ard time
commitment

Directors’ servite cantracts and letters of sppointment

Executive Date of contract Unexpired term of contract Notice period
KD Rountree 25 February 2009 Ralling contract 12 months

R F Tongue 25 March 2015 Rolling contract 12 months
Non-executive Date of appointment Date of last re-election at an AGM Notice period
TH FKirby 1January 2015 16 September 2015 6 months

Cl Myatt 18 April 1996 16 Septembar 2015 6 months

N | Donaldson 18 Apre! 2002 16 September 2015 6 months

E O'Donnell 28 November 2013 17 September 2014 € months
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Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment continued
In accordance wath best practice and as sat out In the Code, notice periods In new service contracts far executive directors are sat at one

year. Non-exacutive director appolntments are made through letters of appointment for a one year term, subject to election and re-
election by the Company's shareholders in accordance with the Company's artides and the Cade

Palicy on payment for loss of office
If an executive director’s amployment s to be terminated, the committee’s policy in respact of the service agreement {In the absence of a

breach of the service agreement by the director} Is to agree & termination payment based on the value of base salary and contractual
pension and other benefits that would have accried to the director during the contractual notice period Depending on the particular
arcurnstances, a director may work the notice period, be placed on garden leave for some or all of the notice period or recelve a payment
in heu of notice in accardance with the service agreement, The committee will consider mitigation to reduce the terminat:on paymeant to a
teaving director when appropriate to do so, having regard to the specific drcumstances

Non-executive directors’ appointments may be terminated without compensation but with six manths’ notice

External appointments
The executive directors may each accept one externat appointment with the prior approval of the board, from which any fees may be

retained At present, neither of the executive directors holds any putside directorship

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere In the Group
The Group alms to provide a remuneration package to all empioyees that Is market competitive, complies with any statutory requirements
and is applted fairly and equitably across the employee population, taking into account local emptoyment market conditions

All employees receive a base salary, may join a pension scheme, when eligible, or have equivalent state provided pension benefits.
Employees are also eligible to participate in the sharesava scherne when an invitation is made to do so

The committee takes Into account the general basic salary Increase being offered to employees elsewhere in the Graup when annually
reviewing the salary increase and remuneration of the executive directors. Employees are not consulted in respect of board remuneration

Conwuderation of shareholder views

The committee takes Into account shareholder feedback received on remuneration matters, induding comments in refation to the AGM in
addition to any additional comments in correspondence direct with the Company The committee would seek to engage directly with major
sharehofders should any materlal changes be made to the pohcy.

Annual report on remuneration {subject to audit)
The tahles below set out in a singte figure the total remuneraton, including each elemnent, for each person who served as a director of the
Company during the financial years ended 31 May 2015 and 29 May 2016,

Yaar ended 29 May 2016
Pension related

Salary/fees  Taxable benefits Profit share Sharesave benefits Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
K D Rountree 363 - - - 39 402
R F Tongue 173 - - - 20 193
TH FKirby 22 - - - - 221
CiMyatt 60 - - - . &0
N ! Donaldson 52 - - - - 52
E O'Donnell 52 - - - - 52
Total 921 - - . 59 980

Year ended 31 May 2015

Pension related

Satary/fees  Taxable benefits Profit shara Sharesave benefits Tatal

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

K D Rountree 283 - - 9 32 324
RF Tongue * 72 . - 4 9 85
TH FKirby 346 2 - - 26 ara
CJMyart 60 - - - 60
N J Denaldson 52 - - - - 52
€ O'Donnelt 52 - - - - 52
Total 865 2 - 13 &7 947

*appointed 1 January 2015
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Annual report on repuneration {subject to audit) continued

The figures In the single figure tables above are derived as follows.

Salary/fees — the ampunt of salary/fees received In the year, after any salary sacrifice arrangements for pensien contnbutions.

Taxable benefits - the taxable value of benefits recerved during the year. These Include fuel and pnvate medical insurance

Prefit share - the amount of profit share earned in the year

Sharesave ~ the value of the sharesave options granted is based on the fair value of tha options at grant On exercrse, the value is based on
the gain made between the option price and the market value of the shares on the date of exerclse

Pension related benefits — the cash value of pension contzibutions received by the executve directors This includes the Company's
contribution nto the group personal pension scheme [in the case of K D Rountree and R F Tongue), and Into T H F Kirby's self Invested
personal pension plan until 31 December 2014

In addition, Mrs X Kirby (Lathbury} received nil {2015, £66,185) during the year from the Group for her work as interlm head of IT Mrs
Kirby ceased to work for the Group on 30 November 2014 T H F Kirby provided consultancy at a cost of £35,000 in the year {2015
£25,000) As noted above, the consultancy agreement with T H F Kirby has been terminated.

During 2015/16 and 2014/15 there were no payments made for loss of office. There were also no payments made to past directors In
either the current or prior year.

CEQ remuneration
M N Wells THFKirby K D Rountree
2013 2013 2014 2015** 2015 2016
£000 £000 £000 {000 £000 £000
Total remuneration 774 132 511 291 168 402
% of maximum profit share paid - 54 - - - -

“M N Wells resigned on 31 January 2013 arw 50 all of his remuneration for 2012/13, including the payment for compensation for ioss of
office, Is included in this table.
**T H F Kirby stepped down as CEQ on 31 December 2014 and K D Rountree was appointed CEQ with effect from 1 January 2015,

Percentage change in CEQ’s remuneration

The table below shows how the percentage change in the CEO's salary in 2015/16 campares with the percentage change in the average
salary of all employees within the Group The committee has seected the Group's entire staff populatian {excluding the CED) as these
represent the most appropnate comparator

CEO Wider workforce
Salary 0% +1%

Relative Impartance of spend on pay
The foliawang tahle sets out the percentage change m dividends, pre-exceptional profit attnibutable to owners and employee remuneration
for the year ended 29 May 2016, compared to the year ended 31 May 2015

2016 2015

€000 £000 % change
Total staff costs 49,765 46,846 +6%
Profit attributable to cwners 13,496 12,257 +10%
Dwidends declared 12,837 16,601 -23%

Statsment of voting st the last AGM
At the last AGM, votes on the remuneration report and policy were cast as follows

Vates for % ofvote  Votesagamst  %hofvote  Votes withheld % of vote
To approve the remuneration report 22,122,138 98.0% 340,627 15% 110,880 0 5%
To approve the remuneration policy 14,020,408 621% 3,910,170 17.3% 4,643,067 20 6%
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Implementation statement
A summary of the remuneratian arrangements in 2015/16 and haw the policy will be applied during 2016/17 is set out below

Solory and fees

As noted above, in May 2016 the comemittea undertook a benchmarking exercise performed by externa!l remmuneration advisers This
reviewed the salaries of the executive and non-executive directors in order 1o assess how they compared with prevalfing market levels of
remuneration

The remuneration pelicy for the non-executive directors Is determined by the board and is reviewed every year Fees were extermnally
benchmarked, as discussed above, laking account of the dutles and responsibilities placed on the non-executive directors The non-
executive directors do not participate in the Group's sharesave schame ar profit share scheme nor do they receive any benefits or pension
contnbutions.

Profit share

The masimum profit share that is payable is E258 per person per year. The performance targets are based upon sales revenue growth from
the pnior year.

Sharesave

A further award of options will be made under the new sharesave scheme during the year which Is on the same basis as previous years

Remuneration and nomination committee

The committee is apponted by the board and comprises N ) Donaldson (chairmany), C ) Myatt, £ O'Donnell and TH FKirby The committee
Is responsible for setting the remuneration packages of the executive directors as well as approving thelr service contracts. The terms of
reference are avallable on the Company’s investor relations website

Advisers

As referred to above, In May 2016 the committee was assisted In Its work by [nnecto, a remuneration consultancy which was appointed by
the Campany in cansullation with the committee The committee assessed whether Innecto was independent in the provision of its advice
and condiuded that it was independent The amount paid to Inhecto during the 2015/16 year for Its advice was £5,000

Directors’ interests In shares of the Company
The directors' interests {Including their families) in the shares of the Company were as follows

Asat As at
29 May 2016 31 May 2015
ordinary shares ordinary shares
of 5p each of Sp each
Non- Non-
Beneficial beneficia! Beneficial beneficial
K D Rountree 20,473 . 15,545 -
R F Tongue 4,700 3,300 4,700 3,300
TH F Kirby 2,108,650 25,536 2,108,650 25,444
C ) Myatt 66,500 - 66,500 -
N ) Donaldson 20,000 - 20,000 -
E O'Donnell 1,500 - 1,500 -
Share gptions
Share options granted to the directors under the sharesave schame wera as follows
Number as at Exercise dates Exercise
At 31 May 2015 Exercised Granted 29 May 2016 Commencement  txpiry prce
K D Rountree 3924 - - 3,924 Nov-17 Apr-18 458 7p
RF Tongue 3,924 - - 3,924 Nov-17 Apr-18 458 7p

The options abova were granted under the Games Warkshop Group PLC 2005 Savings-Refated Share Option Scheme which grants aptions
at a 20% discount on the market price at grant Participants save a fixed amount monthiy for three years in order to fund the exercise of
the option At exerclse an Individual may choose to exercise thew option or have thelr savings repaid to them. This scheme 1s open ta afl
eligible employees and directars who satisfy a service qualification of at least three months. There are no performance targets associated
with these options

On 3 lune 2016, K D Rountree acquired 831 of the Campany’s shares under the Company's dividend reinvestment plan Thss is the only
movement in directors’ interests In shares of the Company between 29 May 2016 and the date of this report.

No other directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Company There is no movement in directors’ interests in shares of
the Company between 29 May 2016 and the date of this report
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Performance graph

The graph below represents tha comparative total sharehalder return performance of the Company against that of the Index of the FTSC
small cap companies during the previous five years. The tndex of the FTSt-smalt cap companies has been used hecause the constituents of
this index most-appropriately reflect the Company's size when compared to alternative indices.
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On behalf of the board

NI Donaldson

Chairman

Remuneration and nomination committee

25 July 2016
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, the remuneration report and the financial statements In accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the
Group and parent company financial statements i accardance with intarnabionad Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union. Under company law, the directors must not approve the financlal statements unless they are satisfled that they give 2
true and falr view of the state of affalrs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financlal statements, the diractors are required to:

=  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

«  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether apphcable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been fallowed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

¢ prepare the financlal statements on the gaing concern basis unless it Is nappropriate to presume that the Group and Company will
continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company’s
transacticns and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Company and Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the remuneration report comply with the Companles Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial
staternents, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detect:on of fraud and other Irregularities.

The directors are respons|ble for the malntenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legsiation In the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

The directors consider that the annual report, taken as a whole, 15 fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s performance, business model and strategy

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed on page 30, confirms that, to the best of his/her knowledge: |

« the Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, |
give a true and fair view of the assets, flabiiittes, financial position and profit of the Group and Company, and

»  the strategic report Includes a falr review of the development and perfarmance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces,

By order of the hoard

R F Tengue

Group finance d r and company secretary
25 July 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Games Workshop Group PLC

Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion
in our opinion:

=  Games Workshop Group PLC's group financial statements and Company financ:al statements (the ‘finandal statements’) g ve a
true and faw view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s alfairs as at 29 May 2016 and of the Group's profit and the
Group's and the Company's cash flows for the year then ended,

* the Group financlal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards
{"IFRSs’) as adopted by the Eurgpean Union,

s the Company financlal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unlon and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compan es Act 2006, and

e the financal statements have been prepared i accordance with the requrements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

What we have audited
The financial statements, incfuded within the annual report, comprise

&  the Group and Company balance sheets as at 29 May 2016,

&  the consolidated Income statement and the consolldated and Company statements of comprehensive income for the year then
ended,

* the consolidated and Company cash flow statements for the year then ended,
s  the Group and Company statements of changes in tatal equity for the year then ended, and

»  the notes to the financial statements, which inchude a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Cenrtain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere In the annual report, rather than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied In the preparation of the financlal statements is IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unicn, and as applicable law and, as regards the company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Comparies Act 2006

Our sudit approach

Overview
Matenahty Qverall Group materiality £847,000 (2015 _£825,000) which represents 5% of operating profit
Audit scope Fulf scope audits, all conducted by the Group engagement team, were perfarmed on six separate reporting units
The reporting units audited included the five largest trading un ts in the Group and the plc company.
The audited reporting umits accounted for B6% of consolidated revenues and 91% of consolidated operating
profit,
Areas of focus | Capitalisation of product development costs.
Inventory vaivation,

The scope of cur audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with faternational Standards on Audting (UK and [reland) {"ISAs (UX & Ireland)’)

We designed our audit by determining matenality and assessing the risks of material misstaternent in the financial statements. In
particular, we [paked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example In respect of significant accaunting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considering future eveats that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk
of management avernde of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud

The nisks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audi, sncluding the allocation of aur resources and effort, are
identified as ‘areas of focus’ in the table below We have also set out how we taiiored our audit to address these specific areas 1n order to
provide an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures should be read in
this context This is not @ complete list of all Asks identifled by our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Area of locus

How our audlt addraessed the area of focus

Captalisation of product development casts

Refer to page 18 {audit commitiee report), page 42 (Key
assumptions and estimates} and page 48 (notes)

The Group Incurred £4 6 million of capitalised product
development costs dunng the year to 29 May 2016, relating to
products the Group develops to sefl through Its vasious channels.
The net baok vatue of such capltalised costs as at 29 May 2015
was £4.2 miilion.

We focused on this area due to the inherent level of judgement
around whether costs capltalised meet the recognition criteria of
1AS 38 'Intangible assets’ {"IAS 38'), a determination that Involves
estimation In particular as regards to whether they are specfic to
projects which are expected to generate future cash nflows and
also the recaverability of the costs based on expected product
sales

We assessed whether the costs capitalised retating to product
development met the ¢riteria set within IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ We
agreed a sample of capitalised product development costs to source
documentation, Including invoices and timeshests, and determined
that they had been allocated to the correct project.

We obtained and inspected the [atest foracasts in respect of projects

to assess recoverability of the capitatised costs. in order to assess the
aceuracy of the future sales forecasts, we compared actual FY16 sales
to forecasts made in previous years and evaluated the historical
accuracy of the directors’ estimates. Based on this assessment, we
found the directors’ farecasts to be consistent with the actual historical
outturn of sales and the jevels of sales made post-year end.

We applied sensitivity analysis to the forecasts to understand the
shartfail in revenues that would be required ta cause a material
impalrment In the carrying value of capitalised costs. We cansldered
the shortfall required to cause a matertal impairment unlikely given the
histonical accuracy of the directors’ forecasting. _

Inventory valuation

Refers to page 18 {audit committee report), page 42 (Key
assumptions and estimates) and page 51 (notes).

The Group held inventory of £8.5 million as at 29 May 2016. The
directors determine the provision for inventory by making
assumplions about future sales by product and applying those to
the current inventory holding

The Group operates In a retad market where new product
releases are regular There Is a risk that inventaries held wil not
be s0ld through and there 1s Inherent judgement in the levels of
sales the directors forecast when assessing realisable value Over
the last three years the Group has on average written off £0 7
mitilon of iInventory per annum.

In order to assess the level of provision required against
inventory, the directors assess forecast sales levals by product.
The provisian calculation is subject to manual adjustment to
reflect the speafic drcumstances of certain inventory lines, for
example, consumables, discontinued product lines and new
products

We focused on this area because of the subjectnty around
forecasting future sales performance of newly launched
products, and because of the judgement that exists around the
manual adjustments to the calcuiation.

We testad that the Group’s provisiomng policy is 10 accordance with
IFRSs a5 adopted by the EU and has been consistently applied. We
understood and assessed manual adjustments to the provision
calculation to determine whether they were appropriate, No
inappropriate adjustments were identrded.

We obtained an understanding of the directors’ process far preparing
future stock sales forecasts, including how these were challanged and
strass-tested by the directors We tested the integnty of the underlying
calculations and assessed the assumptions over future sales forecasts
by test'ng via recalculation the accuracy of the historic sales forecasts
compared to actual outturm. We noted no matenal differences
between histoncal forecasts and actual out-tum and were therefore
satisfied that the directors forecasting process was reasonable

We gbtalned further evidence over the valuatian of the provision by
companng a sample of product lines to post-year end sales and
assessing whather performance suggested that additional provisions
may be required This also provided us with evidence aver the accuracy
of the directors’ sales forecasts used In calculating the provision No
matenal errors were noted.

How we tallored the sudit scope

We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough wark to ba able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting processes and contrals, and the industry in which the

Group operates

The Group Is a vertically integrated business, as shown in note 3 in the notes to the financiat statemants, The group financial statements
are a consolidation of a number of reporting units, comprising the Group’s sales, manufacturing and distr.butson businesses and central.sed

functrons, and a number of non-trading Group entsties.

Accordingly, of the Group’s reporting units, in addition to the plc company, we identified five reporting un ts that, In our view, required an
audit of their complete financial information, owing to their financial significance to the Group Together, these five units and the ple
company, accounted for 86% of consohdated revenues and 91% of consolidated operating profit. The audit of all s:x units was performed
by the group engagement team. This, together with additional procedures performed, including analytical procedures and certain tests of
details over specfic balances and transactions, gave us the evidence we needed for our omnion on the group financ'al statements as a

whote,

Materiafity

The scape of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certamn quantitative theesholds for matenabity. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, tmng and extent of our audit
pracedures on the individua! financlal statement line {tems and disdosures and in evatuating the effect of misstatements, both individually

and on the financial statements as a whole
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Materiallty continued
Based on our professionat judgement, we determined rmaterlailty for the financlal statements as a whole as follows:

Overafl group matericlity £847,000 (2015 £825,00G).
[How we determined it 5% of operating profit before exceptional items

'Ratfanoie for benchmark applied  We consider this to be the pnmary benchmark used by key stakeholders to evaluate the pedormance of
the Group We exclude exceptional Items In order to eliminate volatility arising from ane off items which
we belleve are not reflective of underlying operations and therefore provides us with a cansistent basts
for determining materiality.

We agreed wath the audit committee that we woukd report to them misstatements identified durning our audst above £50,000 (2015
ES0,000} as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reparting for gualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are requ red 1o review the directars’ statement, set aut on page 16, in relation to gaing concern Wea have
nathing to report having performed our review Under 15As (UK & Jreland) we are reguired to report to you i we have anything materlal to
add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement about whether they considered It appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the finandal statements. We have nathing material to add or draw attention 1o As noted In the directors’ statement, the
directors have concluded that it 1s appropriate to adapt the golng concern basis in preparing the financial statements The going concern
basis presumes that the Group and Company have adequate resources to remain in aperation, and that the directors intend them to do so,
for at least ane year from the date the financial statements were signed As part of our audit we have conchuded that the directors’ use of
the galng concern basis Is appropriate However, because not all future events or condit ons can be predicted, these statements are not a
guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concermn.

Other required reporting
Consistency of other Information
Companies Act 2006 opinions
In our apinion
« theinformation given In the strategic report and the directors’ repart fur the financ al year for which the financial statements are
prepared Is consistent wath the financeal statements; and
e theinformation given in the carporate governance report set out on pages 17 ta 20 with respect to Internal control and risk
management systems and about share capital structures 15 consistent with the financial statements
i5As {UK & Irefand] reporting

Under 15As (UK & Ireland} we are required to report to you if, 'n our oplnion

* information In the annual report s We have no exceptians to
- matenally Inconsistent with the information in the audited Rnancial statements; or report,
apparently materially Incorrect based on, or matertaily Inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group
and company acquired in the course of parformmng our audit, or
- otherwise misleading

s the statement given by the directars on page 29, in accardance wath provision € 1 1 of the UK Corparate [We have no exceptions to
Governance Code {the 'Code’), that they considar the annual report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced jreport.
and understandable and prowides the Information necessary for members to assess the group's and
company's position and performance, business model and strategy |s materially inconsistent with aur
knowledge of the group and company acquired in the course of performing our audit

e the section of the annual repert on page 18, as required by provision C.3 8 of the Code, describing the 'e have no exceptions to
work of the audit committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit
committee

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liguidity of the grou
Linder ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required ta repart to you if we have anything materral to add or to draw your attention ta in refation to:

s the directors confirmation on page 11 of the annual report, in accordance with provisions C.2.1 of the ‘e have nothing material
Code, that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facng the group , including  Ro add or to draw attention
those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or hquidity to

[We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw attention
o

'We have nothing material
to add or to draw attention
RO,

* the disclosures in the annual report that describe those nsks and explain how they are bemng managed or
mitigated.

& the directors’ explanaticns on page 16 of the annual report, in aceordance with provision € 2 2 of the
Code, as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what period they have done so and
why they consider that penicd to be appropriate, and therr statement as to whether they have
reasonable expectatian that the group wiil be able to continue in operation and meet its babilities as they
fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disctosures drawmng attention to any
necessary qualification or assumptons
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the directors’ statement that they have carried out a rabust assessment of the principal
tisk facing the Group and the d rectors’ statement In retation ta the longer term v.sibdity of the Group Our review was substantially less in
scope than an sudit and only consisted of making inquirtes and considering the directors’ process supporting their statemants, checking
that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provis'ons of the Code; and conudering whether the statement are consistent w.th
the knowledge acquired by us In the course of performing our audit. We have nothing to repert having performed our review

Adequary of accounting records and information and explanations recelved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requlred to report to you If, In our opinion:
*  we have not recelved all the Information and explanations we requ re for our audit, or
¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, ar raturns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or
*  the company financ:al statements and the part of the remuneration report to be audited are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration report - Companles Act 2006 oplnlon
In our opiruo, the part of the remuneration report ta ba audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Other Companies Act 2006 reparting
Under the Companles Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you if, In our opinion, centaln disclosures of directors’ remuneration specifled
by law are not made We have no exceptions to report arlsing from this responsibi! ty

Corporate governance statement

Under the Companles Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the Company We have no exceptions to report arlsing from this respons bility.

Under the Lisuing Rules we are required to review the part of the corporate governance report relating to ten further provisions of the
Code. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

Responsiblilttes for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibliities and those of the directors

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsiblities statement set out on page 29, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and fair view Cur responsiblity s to audit and express an opinlon on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable faw and 15As (UK & Ireland), Those standards require us ta comply weth the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors This report, including the opinlons, has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companles Act 2006 and far na other purpose We do not, In giving
these opimons, accept or assume responsibllity for any ather purpase or to any other person to whom this report Is shown or Into whose
hands it may coms save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of finandal statements involves
An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This inchzdes an assessment of

¢  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the Company's circumstances and have been consistently

applied and adequately disclosed,

+  the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and

* the averall presentation of the financial statements.
We pnmarlly focys our work in these areas by assessing the directars’ judgements against available evidence, forming our own
Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.
We test and exantine Informatlan, using sampling and ather auditing techniguaes, to the extest we consider necessary to prowude a
reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtaln audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of tontrols, suhstantive
procedures or a combunation of both.
In addition, we read all the financiat and non-financial information In the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financ:al statements and to identify any Information that is apparently materially Incorrect based an, or maternially Inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
Intonsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Andrew Lyon
for and on behalf 8f PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
East Midlands

25 July 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended Year ended
19 May 2016 A1 May 2015
Notes £000 £000
Revenye 3 118,064 119,132
Cost of sales [37.428) {36,938}
Gross prafit 80,631 82,144
Qperating expenses 34 {69,118 {67.207)
Other aperating Income - royalties rece vabte 5,919 1,498
Exceptional ltems 5 - 42
Operating profit 3 15,850 16,477
Finance income 7 9 109
Finance costs 8 is} {1
Profit before taxation 9 16,948 18,585
Intome tax expense 10 {3.452) {4,328)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 27 13,496 12,257
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners of the parent during the period {(expressed in pence per share)
Year ended Year ended
Nates 29 May 2016 31 May 2015
Baslc earnings per ardinary shasre i1 a2 1p 383p
Dihsted earnings per ordinary share u 42.0p 38.3p
Basic earnings per ordinary share - pre-exceptional items 11 a2.1p a8 ip
Dituted earnings per ordinary share - pre-exceptional items 1 a2.0p 38 1p
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Group Company
Yearended  Year ended Year ended Year ended
20 May 1016 31 May 2015 29May2016 31 May 2015
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit attributable to ownars of the parent 13,496 12,257 13,363 16,159
Other camprehenive Income /{expense)}
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to prolht or loss
Enchange differences on transtation of forelgn operations 6 485 {473) -
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the perod 435 [473) -
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 13,881 11,784 13,363 16,159

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2005, the Company's income statement has not been intluded In these finandal statements,

The notes oft pages 39 to 58 are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
9May 2016 31 May 2015 29 May 2036 3] May 2015
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Gaodwill 13 1,433 1,433 . -
Other intangible assets 14 10,5601 8,262 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 22,621 22,719 . -
tnvestments In subsidiaries 16 - - 30,584 30,584
Trade and other retelvabies 19 w9 1,19% 3,900 3,900
Delerred tax assels 17 1,219 3,621 a3 7
38,703 37,230 34,527 34,491
Cusrent asyets
Inveriiories 18 8,540 7,625 - -
Trade and other recenabies 19 10,120 9,425 1516 1,180
Curvent tax assets 725 500 . -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 11,775 12,561 843 7L
31,160 30,211 2,358 1,251
Totsl assets 69,8563 67,441 36,886 35,742
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 {12,844} {13,131} {ns) (738)
Current tax Uabilities {1,924) {1,434) - -
Piovistons rl) {813) 519 - -
(15,591) (15,004) {718) {738)
Net current assets 15,569 15,117 1,641 513
Non-curremt Hahilities
Other non current Habilitles 23 {a88) {364} {141) -
Prowmions 24 {621) {458) - -
{1.109) (822} (141) -
Net assets 53,163 51,525 36,027 35,004
Caphtal and reserves
Called up share capital 5 1,506 1,603 1,606 1,603
Share premium account 25 10519 10,218 10,519 10,218
Qther reserves 26 1,667 1,182 10 101
Retalned earnings 27 333N 33,522 23,801 23,082
Total equity 53,163 51525 16,027 35,008

The notes on pagss 39 to 58 are anniegral part of these financlal statements.

The finandal statements on pages 35 to 58 were apgroved by the board of directors on 25 July 2016 and were signed on its behalf by;

K Qo,,_lf\__

R

R F Tongue,

Registered number 2670969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

Share Retained
Calted up premium  Qther resarves eamings Total
share capltal account {note 26) {note 27) equity
£000 EODD £000 £000 £000
At 1 june 2014 and 2 June 2014 1,593 9,490 1,655 42,656 55,394
Profit lor the year to 31 May 2015 - - . 12,257 12,257
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operalions - - {473) - {473)
Total comprehensiva (expense)/income for the periad - - {473) 12,257 13,784
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments . - - 232 232
Shares lssued under employee sharesave scheme [note 25} 10 118 . - 738
Deferred tax charge relating to share optlons - - - {13} m
Current tax credit retating to exetcised share optlons . - - 49 19
Dividends paid to Company sharehoiders - - - {16,601) {16,601)
Total transactions with owners 10 718 - {16,391) {15,653)
At 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 1,603 10,218 1,182 38,522 51,525
Prafi for the year to 29 May 2016 . . . 13,496 13,496
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations - - 485 - 485
Total comprehensive Income for the period - - 4BS 13486 13,981
Transactions with owners.,
Share-based payments - - - 193 193
Shares Issupd under employee sharesave scheme (hote 25) 3 m . - 304
Current tax charge relaling to exercised share options . . - {3) (3}
Dividends pawd to Company shareholders - - - [12,837) (12,837}
Total transactions with cwners 3 301 - {12,647} (12,343)
At 29 May 2016 1,606 10,519 1,667 19,371 53,1563
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
Share Camtal
Called up premium redemption Retained Total
share capital Fccount feserve earnings equity
£000 E£000 £000 EQ00Q £000
At 1 June 2014 and 2 June 2014 1,593 9,490 10 23,292 34,476
Profit for the year to 31 May 2015 - - 16,159 16,159
Total comprehensve ncome for the perlod - - - 16,159 16,159
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments - - - an 32
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 10 728 . . 738
Drvidends pawd to Company shareholders . - - {16,601} {16,601}
Total transactlons with owners 10 728 . {16,369) (15.631)
At 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 1,603 10,218 101 23,082 35,004
Profit for the year to 29 May 2016 - - 13,363 13,363
Yotal camprehensive income for tha pariod - - - 13,363 13,363
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments - - 193 192
Shares Issued under employee sharesave scheme 3 in - - g4
Dividends pald to Company shareholders - - - {12,837} (12.837)
Total transactions with cwners 3 0 - {12,644) {12,340)
At 29 May 2016 1,506 10,519 101 23,801 36,027

The notes on pages 39 to 58 are an integral part of these finantial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Yeavended  Year ended
29 My 2016 3] May 2015 29 May 2016 31 May 2015
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 8 26,782 25,579 13,234 15,585
UK corporation tax pald (2,238) {1.912) - -
Overseas tax pald {316} {393) - .
Net cash from operating activities 24,230 23,274 13,234 15 585
Cash fiows from trvesting activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (5,295} (6,783) -
Proceeds an disposal of property, plant and equipmen b ] - 28 -
Purchases of other intangible assets (2,789} [1,012) - -
Expenditure on product develapment 14 (4,518} (4,579) - -
interest recetved 256 115 70 84
Net cash from Investing activities {12.577) _{12,233) 70 B4
Cash (lows from financing sctivitles
Proceeds from ksue of crdinary share capital 25 304 738 304 738
interest paid {3 {1} - .
Dividends pald to Company shareholders 12 {12,837} 16,601) 112,537) {16,601}
Net cash from Fnancing activities £12,536] 15,864) [12,533) (15,863}
Net {decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents {83} {4,823} m {194)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 12,561 17,550 n 266
Efiects of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 97 (1686} 1 1)
Gih!mbm cash equivalents 0 1L,775 12,561 843 71

The notes on pages 39 to 58 are an Inlegral pant of these financsal siaterments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  Genera! information

Games Warkshap Graup PLC (the ‘Company’) and Hts subs d aries (iogether Lhe ‘Group’) deslgns and manufactures miniature (igures and games and
dustributes these through lts own network of retall stores, independent retallers and direct wa the intemet and mall order The Group has manufacturing
activities in the UX and sells mainly in the UK, Continental Europe, North America, Australia, New Z=aland and Asia

The Company is a public Usted company, incorporated and dom ciled in the United Kingdom The address of its registered office is Willow Road, Lenton,
Nottingham, NG7 2WS, United Kingdom

The Company’s ordinary share eapital is listed on the Londoo Stock Exchangs.

2, Summary of significant actounting polictes
The printipal attountmg policles apphed in these finantial staternents are sel out below These poiioes have been consistently apghed 1o all the penpds
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basls of greparation

These financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ((FRSs), IFRS
tnterpretations Commitiee interpretations and Standing Interpretations Committec {SIC} interpretations as adopted by the European Union and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to those companies reporting under IFRSs

The consolidated financlal statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for the measurement of certain financlal
nstrurnents to their falr value,

Basls of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements indude the Company and Uts subsidiary indertakings drawn up for the years ended 29 May 2016 and 31 May 2015,
Subsidianes are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financ al and operating pohicies and ate fully consolidated from the dale on
which control Is transferred to the Group

inter-company transactions, batances and unsealised gains and losses on transactions between group compantes are eliminated on consobdation
Accounting policies of subsldiaries are consistem with the policies adopted by the Group The finznciat statements of all subsidtaries are prapared to the
same reporting date as the parent Campany with the excepton of the financial statements of Games Workshap Good Hobby (Shanghai) Commenrciat Co Ltd
which are prepared to 31 Decernber The management acoounts of Games Workshop Good Hobby [Shanghal) Commemual Co Ltd, prepared to 29 May 2016
and 31 May 2015, have baen used for consalidation purposes. In addi*ion the first set of inancial statements for Games Workshop Mataysia Sdn Bhd will
be prepared o 31 May 2017 and hence the management accounts prepared to 29 May 2016 have been used for consolwiation purposes.

Goodwiit

Goodwlll arising on acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fabe value of the Group’s share of the net
identitiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodw | 5 tested annuat’y for impeirment, or when an indlcator of impalrment
arises, and Is camed at cost lass accumulated impalrment losses Provision is made for any tmpa rment by companng the value in usa to the net carmrying
value Goodwillis allocated to cash generating units for the purpase of imparment testing

Goodwll arising an acquisitions prior to 31 May 1938 was written off to reserves «n sccordance with the accounting standard then in force As permitied by
the current accounting stanctard, the goodwall praviousty written off to reserves has not been reinstated tn the balance sheet.

Other intangible assets

Development costs

Costs Incurred In respect of product design and development activities are recognised as intang bie assats when they meet the criteria of 1AS 38 Intangtble
Assets’ and are wholly attributable to specific projects Product development costs recogmsed as Intangble assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over
periods ranging between 1 and 48 months to match the expenditure Incurred to the expected revenus generated from the subseguent product release
However, there are some design costs which do not meet the recogniison criteria and are therefore not capltalised, and are shown in note 8

Computer software

Atguired computer software ficences and related deve opment expend ture are capltalised on the basis of the costs Incurred to acqunre and bring into use
the spezilic software Computer software licences are he d at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful lves of the assets Costs
assoctated with maintaining compuler software programmes are recognised as an expense as lacurred Development costs that are directly attributable to
Lhe design and testing of Identifiable and unique software products contreiled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when they meet the criteria
of 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’.

Dther development expenditure that does not meet thesa criteria is recagnised as an expense as ncurred

Development costs praviously recogmised as an expensa are not recognised as an assel in a subsequent period The principal annual amortisation rates are

% of cost
Core business systems computer software 15-33
Web store computer software 20
Other computer software 33-50
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Summary of significam accounting policies continued

" Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of actumutated depreciation and any provision for impairment The cost of property, plant and
equipment Is thelr purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Degreciation is calculated on a straight Hine basis over the expected useful econamic lives of the assets concernad to wrile down to the asset’s residual vatue
and commences from the date the asset Is available for use. The principal annual deprediation rates are

% of vost
Freehold bulldings 24
Plant and equipment and vehicles 15-33
Fidtures and fittings b2
Maulding too's 25

Leasehol Improvements are depreciated over the sharter of the useful ecanomic (ife of the asset or the period of the lease. These assets are Inchaded
within fixtures arut fittings Freehold land Is not depreclated

Trade receivables

Trade recetvables are recognised initlally at fair value, which Is typically 1he origina) inwakce amount, and carried at amortisad cost thersafter A provision for
Impairiment of trade receivables Is established when thare is objective evidence that the Group will not be able ta collect all amounts dus according to the
original terms of the receivable The amount of the prowvision is recugnised in the income statement immediately.

Leases
Operating leases
Leases in which a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retalned by the lessor are classified as cperating leases. The Group’s

commitment in respect of lis retail stores )s included wathin this category Payments ln respect of operating leases and any benefits recenved as an incentive ,

1o sign a lease, are charged or credited to the tncome statement on a straight line basis over the pertod of the entire lease term,

Inventarias

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nei realisable value Cost Is determined using a standard costing rmethod taking into account variances In
respect of finlshed goods, cost includes raw materials, direct fabour, other direct costs and related production overieads bazed on 2 normal level of
production Net realisable vatue s the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses Where necessary
provisions are made for cbsolete, slow moving and defective invenlorles.

Forelgn turrency transiation

The conschdated financial statements are presented in sterling, which Is the Company’s functional and presentation currency Hems included En the financial
statements of each of the Group entltles are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional
currency) Manetary assets and llabibties expressed In currencies that are not the funclional currency are transated into the functional currency at rates of
exchange ruiing at the baiance sheet date, The financial statements of overseas subsid'ary companies prepared In functional currendies other than sterfing
are translated into stedlng as follows s

- Assets and Eabllities are transiated at the dosing rate at the date of the balance sheet,
- Incoma and expenses are translated at the average rate for the perod,
All resuiting exchange differences are recognised as a separate companent of equity

Cash and cash eguivalents
Far the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equlvalents comprise deposits with banks and bank and cash balances, net of avardrafis

Trade payatiles
Trade payables are recognised imtially at falr value and subsequently measured al amortised cost usng the elfective interest method

Other employee benefits

Penslon costs

The Group aperates defined contribution schemes and a group per:onal pens on plan. Pension contributions are charged to the Income statement as they
accrue There are no furlher obhigations to the Group onte payment has been made

Banus and incentive plans
The costs of annual bonus schemas are charged to the Income statement as they accrue

Long service benefits

The Group operates a long service incentive scheme under which employees rece ve 3 one off additional holiday entitlement of two wesaks when they reach
10 years of employment {10 Year veterans} The costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment based on expscted staff retention rates
and the anticipated future employment costs discounted to present value.

Share-based payment
The Group operates a number of equity-settied employee sharetave schemes. The falt value of the employee services recefved under such schemes is
recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding mesease In equity over the vesting perod

Investmenis
Shares and boans i subsafiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisian for impairment
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2. Summary of signiftcant accounting policies continued

Revenue

Revenue, which extludes value added 1ax and sates between group companies, represents the involced value of goods supplled (net of trade discounts for

sales to independent retallers) Revenue is recognised on dispatch of goods to the customer for sales via the globa) web store or mall order and for sates to

independent retalters This represents when the signtficant risks and rewards of awnership of the goods have transferred to the customer For revenue :
earned through the Group's retail stores and for digital products, revenue Is recognised at the point of sale Revenue (or magarine subscriptions Is

recognised on @ stralght line basis over the subscription period.

Revenue on goods sold to customers an a safe or return bas s {which indudes book sales) Is recogniced after making full pravision for the level of expected
returns, based on past experience The level of retums 1s reviewed on a regular basis and the proviston is amended accordingly Revenue on a sale of retum
basis represents no mare than 3% of conspiidated revenue (2015 no more than 3%,

Royalty income

Royaity Income Is recognised In the intomne statement when i can be rellably measured by reference to the underying licensee performance, after allowing
for expected retumns and price protection claims, as notlfied to the Group by the licensee and following vakdation of the amounts recelvable by the Group
Cash received as guarantees and advances are deferred on balance sheet whilst it 15 conydered probable that future royalty earnings will at least equal the
amounis received. Such amgunts are recagnised tn the income statement a1 tha polnt at which they are eamed as royallies In the event that it is no longer
considered probable that future royalty eamings wilt 4t ledit equaf the guzrantees and advances received, the guarantee and advance payments are taken
to the Income statement on a stralght iine basis over the remaining term of the licence agresment

Segment reparting

Operating segmenis are reported in 3 manner consistent with the internat reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identifled as the executive .
directors

Taxation
The charge for current tax Is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items witich are non assessable or disallawed It is cafcutated using rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shest gate

Defetred taxation Is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method In respect of tempaorary differences arising from difierences between the carrying
amount of assets and liaktitles in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit In principle, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all 1axable temnporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognhied to the extent that it is probable that taxable peofits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be ut llsed Such assets and llabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwd! or from the inital recognition {other than in a business cambination) of other assets and liablities in a transaction which affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Oeferred taxliabllities are recogrused for taxable temporary differences arising on investments In subsidiaries except where the Group Is able to control the
reversa! of the temporary difference and it 1s prabable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or lizbility Is settted Deferred tax Is charged or credited In the income
statement, except where It retates to items credited or charged directly to equ ty, In which case the deferred tax Is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilittes are offset when they refate 10 income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and kabilities on a net basis

Dividends
Dividend distributions are recagrised in the financial statements in the period in which they are declared,

Impatrment of sssets

Assets are tested for impairment in accordance with J1AS 36 ‘impairment OF Assets’ For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped together
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Disccunt rates refieciing the asset specific nsks and the time value of money are
used for the value tn use caiculation

Provistons
Provissons are recognised In accordance with IAS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities’

Provisions are made for committed costs outstanding under anerous or vacant property leases and the estimated liabillty is discounted to i1s present value
Provislons are made tor property dilapidations where a legal gbligation exists and when the decision has been matde to exit a property, or whera the end of
the lease commitment is imminent and a rekable estimate of the exit liabllity can be made The estmated employes beneflt iability arising from the 10 Year
Veterans incentive scheme Is classified within provisians Amounts relating to employees who reach 10 years’ service in more than one year are classified as
nan current Prowisions ara made for redundancy costs once the employees affected have a valid expectation that their roles will become redundsnt

Share capltal
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or ophons are shown In equity as 2 deduction, nat |
of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial instrutments

|
Al financtal assets are classified as 10ans and recelvables” and financial liabifities as ‘other financlal Habifities' {measured at amortised cost) in accordance |
with IAS 39 Management determines the dassification of its financial assets and llabilities at inltial recognition. ‘
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

1. Summory of significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financlal statements requires managemeni to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported zmounts of
revetiues, expenses, assets and Hatslities, and disclosure of contingencies at the balance sheet date If in future such estimatss and assumptions, whch are
based on management's best judgement 3t the date of the consolidated financlal statements, deviate fram actuzl circumstances, the original estimates and
asiumptions will be modifled, a5 appropriate, In the peciod In whith the drrumstances change The following areas are cansidered of greater complexity
and/or particularly subject to the exerdse of judgemen:

- management estimates and judgements are requred In atsessing the impairment of assets, induding capltalised develppment costs and fixtures and
fitrings within loss making retall stores, particutarty tn relation to the forecasting of future tash fiows and the discount rate applied to the cash flows

+ judgement is involved In assessing the exposures in the provistans {including inventory, loss making retail stores, other property, bad debt and retums)
and hence In sefting the levet of the required prowsions.

Excapticnal items

Costs which are both materlal and non recurring, whose significance Is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure in the financlal statements, are referred to
as exceptional ltlems These items are a credil In the prior period in relation to the release of amounts previously provided for the continental european
reorganisation

Now asceounting standards.
There are no new accounting standards or interpretabons effective In the current penod which are relevant to the Group

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have been published it are not yet effective which are relevant to the Group ate

- IFRS 16 'Leases’ (effective for the year ending 31 May 2020) Under this new standard ai! leases will be required Lo be recognised on balance sheet
Currently under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ only leases categorised as finance leases are recognised on balante sheet, with leases categorised 35 aperating
leases not recognised. in broad terms the mpact wil be 1o recogatise a lease liabllity and corresponding asset for the operating lease commitmeants
set out innote 30 Tha Group Is assessing tha impact of the new standard

. IFRS 15 *Rievenue from contracts with customers’ (effect:ve for the year ending 2 June 2019), inder this new standard the rayally minmum
guarantee lncome Is expected to be taken as revenue up front Currently the minimum guarantee income is deferred and refeased in line with
licensee sales.

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendmen!s os interpretations ssued by the JASE, but not yet appficable, wil have a signiificant
effect on the Lnancal statements

3. Segmentinformaticn

As Games Wor«shap Is a vertically integrated business, management assesses the performance of sales channels and manufacturing and dxstribution
channels separately At 29 May 2015, the Group Is organised as follows

- Ssleschannels These channels se | product to external customers, through the Group's network of retail stores, independent retaiters and
directly via the giobal web store The sales channels have been aggregated into segments where they sell products of a s nular nature, have
simnilar proguction processes, s.milar customers, similar distnbution methods, and if they are affected by simiar econpmiz factars The segments
are as follows

«  Trade Thissales channel sells globally to independent retailers and ako includas the Group’s magazine newsstand business and
the distributor sales from the Group's publishing business (Black Ubrary)

- Retail. This Includes sales through the Group’s retall stores, the Group's vistor centre In Nottingham, and global exhibitions

- Maiforder This Includes sales through the Group’s global weh stores and digital sales through external a'f] ates

= Product and supply This includes the dasign and manufacture of the products and Incorporates the production faclity In the UX and the Group
logistics and stock management costs This aiso Includes adjustments for the profit in stock arising from inter-segment sales and charges for
Inventory provisions

- Central costs. These include tive Company overheads, head office site costs, and the costs of running the Games Workshop Academy

- Service centre costs Provides support services (IT, accounting, payroll, personned, procurement, legal, customer serwices and credit control} to
2ctivities across the Group and undertakes strategic projects

- Royalties. This s royafty income eamed from third party | censees after deducting assodated litensing costs

The chief aperating decislon-maker assesses the performance of each segment based an aperating proflt, exciuding share option charges recognised under
IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’ This has been recandled 10 the Graup's total profil before taxation below

The segment Information reported to the executive directors for the year ended 29 May 2016 Is a5 follows

Exte nal revenue

Restated®

Yezr ended Year ended

19 May 2016 31 May 2015

£000 £000

Trade 44,522 44,477
Reta:l 48,414 49,060
Mall order 15133 25,595
Total revenus 118,059 119,132
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3. Segment information continued

Segment revenus and seg Tent proflt Include transactions between business segments, these transactions are elimnated on consolidation Sa es between
segments are carried out at arm'’s length, The revenue from external part:es reporied to the executive dlrectors ks measured in a manner cansistent with

that In the Income statement For Information, we analyse external revenue further betow
Restated®

Year ended Year ended
29 May 2016 31 May 2015

£0C0 E£000
Tradse
UK and Continental Europe 15,504 15,656
North America 11,984 17,740
Australta and New Zeafand 1,658 2,000
Asla 741 584
Non core trade 8,675 8,497
Yotal Trade 44,522 A4A77
Retall
UK 16,074 16,959
Continental Europe 12,878 13,879
North America 10,417 9,806
Australia and New Zealand 5113 5,619
Asla a? nz
Non-core retall 3,495 2,480
Total Retal) 48,414 49,060
Maill arder
Citadel and Forge Workd 11,018 21,120
Non-core ma § order 4,115 4,475
Yotal Mail order 15,133 25,595
Total external revenuis 118,069 119,132

*Revenue of £301,000 retating to certain trade customers for the yea+ ended 31 May 2015 has been rectassified from UK and Continental Europe trade Into
nan core trade above ta reflect the way in which the business is structured at 239 May 2016 In add t on £537,000 of revenue has been reclassified from UK
retall to UK and Continental Europe trade In order to comedt 2 dassification error retating to forelgn exchange differences In the prior year

Operatung expenses by segment are regularly reviewed by the executive directors and are provided befow
Resta’ad®*
Yesr ended Year ended
29 May 2016 3 May 2015

E0D0 £000
Trade {8,899) {7.945)
Retall {35,930) {33,934}
Mait arder {5,002) 14,135}
Product and supply {2767 {3,111}
Central costs {5.5a2} (6,206)
Service centre costs {10,907) {11,215
Royalties (430) {429)
Total segment cperating expenses [69,517) (66,975)
Share based piyment charge (193] (232}
Total group operating expenses 169,710) [67,207)
Total segment aperating profit is as lollows and is reconclied to profit before taxation below:
Restated**

Year ended Year ended
29May 2016 31 May 2015

£000 EO0D
Trade 10,625 11,508
Retall 13,410) {1,510}
Mad arder 13,747 14,432
Product and supply 7553 8,506
Central costs (5.424) {6,179)
Service cantre costs {10,507) {11,217)
Royatties 5,319 1,069
Yotal segmant cperating profit 17,053 16,709
Share-based payment charge {193) {232)
Finance income 93 109
Finance costs {5} (1
Profit before tanation 16,948 16,585

*~Segment operating expenses and segment operating profit for the year ended 31 M2y 2015 have been restated to exclude the share-based payment
charge of £232,000 This is now shown a$ a separate [tem ahove
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

3. Scgment nformation continued

In addition charges relaling (o changes i inventory provisions are now all shown within the preduct and supply segment A charge of £37,000 for the year

ended 31 May 2015 has been redassified from retail to product and supply to reflect this.

An exceptional credit of £42,000 for the year ended 31 May 2015 has been Included within the product and supply segment, being the release of amounts

previously grovided for the continental european reorganisation.

Operating profit as reported above includes impairment, depreciation and amortisation charges as lofows

imparment, depreciation and
amortisation
Year ended Year ended
29 May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 EDOD
Trade 13) 12)
Retall {1,439) 11,307}
Mail arder {983) (927)
Product and supply {7,147} {7.909)
Central costs 9 {116}
Service centre Costs {837} (829)
Tatal group charge {10.418) {11,090}
Other non-cash charges and significant costs included In operating profit are as follows
Net charge 10 inventory Redundancy costs and

prowsons compensaton for loss of office
Restaled®*

Yeargnded  Yearended Yearended Year ended
29May 2016 31May 2015 29 May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 £000 E080 £000
Trade - - (zs) (20}
Retall - - {150) {712)
Madl order - - (an (18]
Product and supply {1,805) (1,247} (51} -
Central costs - - 293} {819)
Total group charge {1,805) {:,247) 536} 11,569)

Assel and liability information Is not reported to the chief operating declsion-maker on a segment basis and therefore has not been d-sclosed

Extemnal revenue analysed by customer gecgraphucal location Is as follows

Year andad Year ended
29 May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 £000
UK 33,021 32,999
Continsntal Eurcpe 32,391 33,515
MNorth America 40,788 39,864
Asta Pacific 12981 11,732
Rest of the world 288 1,022
Extemal revenus 118,06% 119,132
The Groyp ks not rellant on any one individual customer
Non current assets (eaclud:ng deferred t2x assets) are located in the following countrles
2016 2015
£000 £000
8 4 32,458 30,777
All gther countries 3,026 2,831
Total non-current assets |exdudlnl deferred tax 3ssets] 315,484 33,600

Tangible and Intangible asset additions included within the UK were £11,307,000 {2015 £11,857,000} and afl other countries were £1,248,000 (2015
£581,000) Development costs of £2,892,000 and zoditions of £3,129,000 dass:fied within all other countries in 2015 are now classified within the UK

4  Operating expenses - pre-exceptional items

Yaarended Year ended

29 May 2016 31 May 2015

€000 £000

Selling costs 41,951 39,588
Administrallve expenses 17,719 27,611
69,710 67,107
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5. Emceptional tems

The exteptional credit of £42,000 reported in the pr.or period relates to the release of amounts previously prov'ded for the continental european

restructuse

6. “Directoes and empioyees

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
29 May 2016 31 May 2015 WMy 2016 31 May 2015
E£000 £000 £000 £000
Total directors’ and employees’ costs
Wages ond salories 42931 40,246 LA20 1,543
Soclal security 471 8,497 178 150
Other pension costs 1910 1,871 75 106
Share-based payment 193 232 3 1
49,765 46,846 1,676 1,800
Detatls of capitalised salary costs, (ncluded in the above, are pravided in note 14 Redundancy costs and campeasatton {ot toss of office, not induded in the
above, are provided in note 8
Key management compentation

The remuneration of the directors and other key management persoanel of the Group are set out below in aggregata for each of the categories specified in

IAS 24 ‘Related Party Distlosures’ This subset of people is different to that referred to as ‘sen or management’ on page 15

Year ended Year ended

19May2016 31 May 2015

£000 £000

Shart-term employee benefits 1110 1,051
Post employment benefits 84 93
Share-based payment L 1
Other long tesm employee benefits - 7
1,199 1,147

Further Info mation relating to directors’ amoluments, shareholdings and share aptions Is disclosed in the remuneration report on pages 25 1o 27

Key managemet are the disectors of the Company and the head of product and supply

Emgloyes numbers
Yearended Year ended
29 Mey 2016 31 May 2015
Group Number Number
Monthly average number of employees {including executive direciors) by actrnty
Oesign and development 09 167
Productian 160 146
Selling
- Full tme 826 824
- Part time 136 169
Adrmmstration 154 348
1,745 1,654
The monthly average number of employees for the Company was 9 (2015 11)
7. Financa income
Year ended Year ended
29May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 £000
Interest Income
- On cash and cash equivalents 93 103
« Dther Interest income receivable - 6
93 109
8 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
29May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 £000
Interest expense
= Unwinding of discount on provisions 2 .
- Other Interest payable 3 1
5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

9 Prof? bofore tazation

Year ended Year ended
29 May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 E000
Profit belore taxation s stéted ster charging.
Depraclation
- Dwned property, plant and equipment 5305 4,991
Impatrment of propenty, plant and equpment ] 9
Amortisation
- Owned tomputer soltware 1232 1,362
- Development costs 3853 4,728
Non-capitalised development pasts 3,895 3,186
Staff costs (exctuding capitalised satary costs shown in note 14 and non-capita ised devalopment custs zbowe) 41,016 40,794
Impairment of trade recevables 242 13%
Operating leases
- Retall stores 7,640 7.645
- Other property 463 Aaag
« Plant and equipment 197 234
« Othar 139 130
Cost of Inventories included wn cost of sates 17,967 18,379
Net inventory provision creation (note 18) 1805 1,247
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equ pment 28 33
Loss on dispesal of Intangible assets k] 24
Redundancy costs and compensatior. for loss of office 536 1,569
Net charge to property prowisions Including closed or Imsmalnq‘ relat sMores (note 24) 562 235
Auditors’ remuneration and sesvices provided
Services provided by the Group's auditors and netwoek firms are anatysed as foliows Year ended Year ended
SMWINE 31 May2015
£000 £000
Audit services
Audit of the Group and Company's financiat staltements 53 53
Other sarvioes
The audi of the Company’s subssidiaries pursuant to legistation 120 122
AH other services 9 12
Total sarvices provided 182 187
10 Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended
19 May 2016 31 May 2015
£000 £000
Current UK taxation
UK corporation tax on profits for the perlog 2,538 3,185
Under provision In respect of prior perigds 40 253
UK corporation taz on exceptional items for the period - 9
1,528 3,427
Current overseas taxation
Owverseas corporation tax on prafits for the period 349 347
Over provision m respect of prior periods (32) (539)
Total curren: taxation 2,945 3,238
Deferred 1axdunn
Origination and reversal of timing dilferences 660 293
(Over}/under provrsion it respect of prior periods {153} 200
Tax axpense recognised In the incoms statement 3452 4,328
Current Lax chargef{credit) relating to sharesave scheme 3 {4s)
Deferred tax charge relating to sharesave scheme “ n
Charge taken diractly to equity 3 22
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10. Income tax expemse continued

The tax on the Group's proflt before taxation differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as (ollows

Year ended Year ended

29 May 2016 11 May 2015

£000 £000

Profit before taxation 16,948 16,585

Profit befare taxation multiphied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (1015 20 83%) 31,330 3,455
Eflects of,

Items not (assessable)/deductible for tax purposas {248) 481

Movement in deferred tax not recognised {2 {4}

Higher t2x rates on overseas eamings 457 482

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods [145) {86)

Total tax charge for the pariod 3452 4,328

A change to the LX corparation tax rate was announced in the Chancefioe's Budget on 16 March 2016 The change announced is to reduce the maln rate to
17% from 1 April 2020 Changes to reduce the UK corporation tax rate to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020 had atready been
sybstamively enacted on 26 October 2015 The overall effect of these changes, il applied to the deferred tax balance at the balance sheet date, would be to
reduce the deferred tax asset by on additional £9,000

11. Eamnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Batic earnings per sha‘e Is ca'tutated by dividing the profit atiributatrde to owners of the parent by the welghted average number of odinary shares in issee
during the period

Yaar anded Year ended

19 Masy 2016 31 May 2015

Preht atinbutable to owners of the parent (£000) 13,496 12,257
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {thousands) 32,093 31,975
Batic earnings per share {pence per shire) 42.1 383

Basic earnings per share - pre-gxceptional Hems

Bauc eamings per share - pre-exceptional ltems is calculsted by dividing the prolit sttributable to owners of the parent, belore exceptional items, by the
welghted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period

Year ended Year ended

29 May 1016 31 May 2015

Pre exceptional profit atttibutable to owners of the parent [E000) 13,456 12,215
Welghted average number of ordinary shares In issue {theusands) 32,093 31975
Basic earnings per share - pre-exceptional items {pence per share} 421 82

Diluted earmings per share

The cakutation of diluted eamings per share has been based on the profit attributable to owners of the parent and the weighted average number of shares
in Issue throughout tha perlod, adjusted for the dilutive effect of share ogtions putstanding at the period end

Year anded Year ended

29 May 2016 31 May 201%

Profit attributable to owners of the parent {£000) 13496 13,257
Welghted average number of ordinary shares In issue (thousands) 32,093 31,975
Adfustment for share options {thousands} s? S0
Weighted average number of ordinary shaves for diluted earnings per share [thousands) 32,150 32,025
Diluted earnings per shars [pence per share} 42.0 38 3

Duuted eamings per share - pre-exceptional items

The calculation of dildted earnings per share - pre-exceptional iterns has been based on the profit attnbutabile to owners of the parent, before exceptional
ftems, and the weighted average number of shares in Issue throughout the penod, adjusted for the dilutive effect of share optlans outstanding at the period
end

Year ended Year ended

19 May 2016 31 May 2015

Pre-except cnal profit attrbutable to owners of the parent (€000} 13,496 12,215
Welghted average aumber of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 32,093 31,975
Adjustment for share options (thousands) 57 S50
Welghted average number of ordinary shases for dilvted earnings per share (thousands) 32,150 32,025
Diluted earnings per share ~ pre-exceptional items (pence per share} 420 381
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

12. Dlvidends per share

A dividand of 20 pance per share, amounting to a total dividend of £6,371,000, a dividend of 16 pence per share, arnouniing to a total dvdend of

£5,099,000, and a further diwdend of 16 pence per share, amounting to a total dividend of 5,129,000, were declared and paid during the prior period A
dividend of 20 pence per share, amounting to a total dividend of £6,413,000, and a further dividend of 20 pence per share, amounting to a total dividend of
£6,424,000, were declared and patd during the current perlod

13, Goadwill

Group £000
Cost

At 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 2,402
Exthange differences 3
AL 29 May 2016 2,405
Accumulated amortisstion

At 31 May 2015 &nd 1 June 2015 (959)
Exchange differences {3)
At 29 May 1016 {972}
Net book value &t beginning of geriod and end of period 1433

The Campany had no goodwill at either period end

mpabment tests for goodwilf

The goodwill arose on the acquisition of TIA Tooling Limited, the acquisition of Tripte K Plastic injection Moulding Limited and the purchase by EURL Games
Workshop af the lease assodiated to Heroic DIffusicn SARL, whith under 1FRS amounied to the purchase of 2 business

in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 ‘impalrment of Assets’ the Group completed a review of the carrying vatue of goodwill as at each peried end
The impairment review was performed to ensure that the carrying value of the Group's assets are stated at ho more than ther recoverable amount, being
the higher of falr value less costs to sell and value in use The key assumptions for the recoverable amount of the gaodwil! are the long term growth rate and
the discount rate The long term growth rate used is purely for the tapairment testing of goodwill under IAS 36 Tmparment of Assets’ and does not reftect
the long term planning assumptions used by the Group lor any ather assessments

In determining the value In use, the calrulations use cash flow projections for a period no greater than three years based on plans approved by mamagement
and, for the Group's cash-generaling unit concerned, assumes 2 long term growth rate no hugher than 2% (2015 2%} The estimated future cash flows
expected 0 arise from the continuing use of the assets are calculated using a pre-tax discount rate of 5% {2015, 6%)

Management reviewed the pianned sales growth and gross margin on the investment In futiire product releases and Initiatives currently being undertaken,

to delivar the expected future performance

Goodwil Is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units {CGUs) for impalrment testing. All of the current goodwlll arises in the product and supply

segment Sensdivity analysis has not been disclosed in these fmancial statements since management consider that there is no reasonably possible change in
the key assumptions that would cause tha carrying value of gopdwill to fall below its recoverable amount

14, Other intangible assets

Computer Development

software costs Totat
Group £000 £000 £000
Cast
At 1 June 2014 and 2 June 2014 9,625 24,912 34,537
Additions 1,116 45719 5,695
Exchange differences 24 - 24
Disposals {265) {1,753) (2,018)
At 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 10,500 17,738 38,238
Additions 2,784 4,578 7,362
Exchange differences 74 . 74
Disposals {18) {2.484) {2.502)
At 29 May 2016 13,340 29,832 43,172
Accumulated amortisation
At 3 june 2014 and 2 June 2014 {4,517 {21.237) (25,854)
Amertisation charge {1,362) {8,728) {6,050}
Exchange differences {26} - 26)
Disposals 241 1,753 1,994
At 31 May 2015 and 1 fune 2015 (5,764) {24,212} {29,976}
Amortisation charge (1,232) {3,853) {5,085)
Exchange otfferences (73) - 73)
Disposals 16 2,447 2,463
At 29 May 2016 {7,053} (28,618) (32,671}
Net book amount
At 31 May 2015 4,736 3,526 8,162
At 29 May 20186 6,187 4,214 10,501
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14, Other Intanglble asssts continued
Amortisaticn of 3,954,000 (2015 £4,590,000) has been charged in cost of sales and £1,131,000 (2015 £1,100,000) In operating expanses

The net book amount of internally generated inlangible a5sets Is £6,557,000 {2015 £3,939,000) and acquired intangible assets Is £3,944,000 {2015
£4,323,000). All devetopment costs are intemnally generated and £3,964,000 {2015 £3,296,000) is capitalised salary cosds.

Salary costs of £4,706,000 {2015 £4,280,000) were capitzilsed a5 part of dewelopment costs and £548,000 {2015 E£m) were capitalsed as part of compu‘er
soltware during the year

Assets in the course of development, and not amortised, amount to £2,811,000 {2015 £1,048,000) w th current and prior year amounts both bemg included
within computer softwate The current year assets are the replacement of the mall order warehouse software (£656,000), the replacement of the ERP

system [£2,038,000) and software licenses for the global web store (£117,000] The prior year refated Lo the development of 1he Forge World web store
(E755,000), replacerent of the mall order warehouse software [£250,000) and upgrads of 11l software {£3,000)

The Company had no other intangble assets at e ther period end

15 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Plant and Fixtures

fand and equipment and Mouiding

bulldings and vehicles fittings tools Total
Group EODD £000 £000 ECO0 £000
Coit
Al 1 June 2014 and 2 June 2014 14,806 16,295 18,807 26,193 76,106
Additions 1,924 1,/ 1,373 1,665 6,753
Exchange differences - 15 {345) 1 {309)
Disposals - {1,499 (1.807) {1,364) _{a.670)
At 31 May 2015 and 1 june 2015 16,730 16,612 18,028 26,500 77,880
Additians 29 1,204 1,806 2,154 5,193
Exchange differences - 119 377 - 496
Disposals . (Fan 1.522) {662) {2.505)
Reclassification {173) 173 - -
At 29 May 1016 16,586 17,214 18,852 271,991 80,664
Accumudated depreclation
Al 1 June 2014 and 2 June 2014 {4,776) {12,689) {16,057) {21,557} {55,079)
Charge for the period {292) {1,578) {1,230} 1,891) {4,9%1)
Exchange diferances - {25) 333 (1) 307
Impalrment - 3 (12) - (9
Dispasals - 1,477 1,771 1,363 4,611
Al 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 [5,068) {12,812) {15,195} {22,086) {55,161)
Charge (or the period {355) {1,625) {1,339} {1,386) {5,305)
Exchange differences - {100} {326) . (426)
Impalement - . {28) - (28}
Disposals . 713 1,502 662 2,877
AL 29 May 2016 (5,423} Ili&l IIS.S“I !IJAlO! !5&0‘31
Net boak amount
At 31 M2y 2015 11,662 3,810 2,833 4,414 22,719
Al 29 May 2016 11,163 3,400 1,476 4582 22,621

Oepreciation expense of £3,199,000 {2015 £2,954,000) has been charged In cost of sates, £1,307,000 {2015 £1,308,000) in selling casts and £795,000 (2035.
£729,000} in administrative expenses

Freehold land amounting to £3,836,000 (2015 £3,836,000) has nat been depreciated

Assels in the course of canstruction, and nat depreciated, amaunt to £1,085,000 (2015 £1,103,000}. £570,000 {2015. £495 000} of these are Included In
moukling tools, £373,000 {2015 £417,000) is induded in plant and equipment and vehicies, £26,000 |2015 £51,000) Is included In freehold Iznd and
buwildings, and £116,000 {2015. £140,000) Is included in fixtures and fittings abave

An mpairment of £28,000 {2015. £12,000) relates ta fistures and fittings and a reversal of £nil {2015 £3,000) relates to piant and machinery within loss
making retail stores which have been written down to estimated value In use. This has baen charged or credited in selling costs in both periods

The Company held no propenty, plant and equipment al either period end
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

16, Investments in substdiaries

2016 2015
Contpany €000 E£000
Shares in group undertakings ~ cost
Bagirming of paricd and snd of period 30,584 30,584
investments in group undertakings are stated at cosl less any provision for impairment.
A list of subsidiary undertakings is gven below
Interests in group undertakings
Proportton of nominal value
of issued shares hetd by
Country of
incorporation Description of Subsidiary
Name of undertaking or registration shares held Company Company Prncipal business activity
Games Workshop Limited England and €1 ordinary 100% Manufacturer, distnbutor and
Wales retailer of games and mindatures
Games Workshap Retall Inc. United States of $1 common 100% Distributor and retatler of games
America stock and miniatures
Games Warkshop (Queen Streel) Canada Can $1 100% Retatler of games and mimatures
Limited
EURL Games Workshop France eurol 100% Retatker of games and minlatures
Games Workshop SL Spamn euro 1 100% Retalier of games and miniatures
Games Workshop 0z Pty Limited Australia Aus 51 100% Dustributor and retaller of games
and minkatures
Games Workshop Deutschiand GmbH Germany euro 100% Retader of games and minlatures
Games Workshop Limited New Zealand NZ 51 100% Retafler of gamaes and miniatures
Games Workshop Italla SAL Naly eurp 1 100% Retaller of games and miniatures
Games Workshop Intermatlonal Limited England and £1 ardnary 100% Holding company for overseas
Wales subsidlary companies
Games Workshop US Limited England and El ordmary 100% Holding company for US subsidiary
Wales compares
Games Workshap US {Hotdings) Limited England and £1 ordinary 100% tntermediary hold:ing company for U%
Wales subsidiary companies
Games Workshop Goad Hobby China Cwmers capital 100% Distributor and retailer of games and
{Shangha!) Commendial Co Ltd minlatures
Games Workshop Trustee Limited England and E1 ordinary 100% Trustee
Wates
Games Workshop Stockholm AB Sweden SKR 100 100% Retailer of games and mmiatures
Games Workshop Hong Kang Limited Hong Kong HX $1 ordinary 100% Distributor and retalter of gamas
and mintaturas
Games Workshop Pte Limited Singapore SG $1 ordinary 100% Distributor of games
and minfatures
Games Workshop Malaysia Sdn. 8hd Malaysia MYR 1 ordinary 100% Distributor of games
and miniatures
Games Workshop Interactve Limied England and £1 ondinary 100% Dermam
Wales
Warhammer Online Umited England and E1 ordinary 100% Dorman:
Wales
Citadel Minlatures Limited England and £1 orchnary 100% Dormant
Wales
Games Workshop Limited Hong Kong HK$10 ordmary 100% Dormant

All of the above entliies are inciuded in the consoildated accounts for the Group and 100% of the voting rights of all entities is held,

All of the abeve companies operate principally in their country of incorporation or registration

The directors consder the vatuz of the Investments Is supported by the underlying assets of the relevant subsidrary
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17. peferrad tax

Deferred tax assets and liabllitles are offset when there is a legally enforceabe right to offset current tax assets against current tax labilties and when the
deferred taxes refate to the same liscal authorlly The amounss are as folliows

Group Company

2016 2015 s 2015

£000 £000 EDDD £000
Deferred tax assets
- deferred tax asset 10 be recovered after mare than 12 months 2274 23719 2 2
- ieterred tax asset 10 be recoversd within 12 manths 945 3,242 41 5

3,218 3,621 43 7
The gross movement on the deferved tax account s as foliows’ Group Campany

M6 2015 2016 2015

£000 EOCD £000 £000
Beg:nning of period 3621 4,715 ? 6
Exchange difierences 105 0 - -
Income statement (charge)/credit {507) {1,093} 36 1
Charged directly to reteined eamings - {71} - .
End of period 3,219 1,621 a3 ?
Analysis of the movement in deferred tax assets and llabilitles ks a5 follows

Losses
Accelerated  Development avadable
depreciation costs {or offset Dther Total

Group £000 £000 E0D0 £000 £000
At 3 june 2014 and 2 june 2014 1,479 {772} 2,227 1,781 4,715
{Charged)/credited to the income statement {104) 67 1549) {510) {1,093)
Charged to equity - - . {71) (71
Exchange differences f84) - 109 45 70
Al 31 May 2015 and 1 Jure 2015 1,294 {705) 1,787 1,245 3621
Crediled/icharged) to the income statement 49 {138) {401) 17) [507)
Exchange differences 19 - 65 21 105
At 29 May 2016 1,362 {843) 145}, 1,249 3213

Other deferred tax assets include delefred tax on adjustiments for profit in stack arlsing from intra-group sales of £861,000 (2015 £948,000)

Deferred tax 3ssets are recognised In respect of tax losses and tempaorary differences Lo the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits |5 prabable This is based on a review of the track recerd of profitability in the country concerned There was no unrecognised deferred

tax at 29 May 2016 of 31 May 2015 in eliher the Group or the Company

The Graup d:d not abtain a cusment tax benefit from previous y unrecognised tax loises In & ther of the periods presented

Actelersted
depreciation Other Total
Company £000 €000 £000
Al 1June 2014 and 2 June 2014 2 4 [
Credited to the Income statement . 1 1
At 31 May 2015 and 1 tune 2015 2 -] 7
Credited to the mcome statement - 36 36
At 29 May 2016 2 (33 43
1B, irwentorles
2016 2015
Group £000 £000
Raw mater:als 120 98
Wark In progress a6s 230
Finished gnods and goads for resale 3,055 7,197
8,540 71625

Tha Group hotds no inventories at falr value less costs to sel!

Bunng the period, the Group uti Ised an inventary prov-sion of £916,000 (20:5: £1,189,000) and £1,805,000 (2015 £1,247,000) has been charged to the

incame statement

The Company holds no inventorias at either period end
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

19. Trade and other receivabley

Group Campany

2016 05 1016 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade teceivables 4,537 4,740 - -
Less provision for impairment of recelvables {259) {252) - -
Trade recevables —net 4,278 4,488 - -
Prepayments and atcrued income 5,304 4,787 20 38
Other recetvabies 1457 1,345 - -
Retewables fram group campanes - - 149 1.142
Loans to group companies - - 3,900 3,900
Total trade and other recelvables 11,049 10,620 5418 5,080
Non-turrent ceceivables
Prepayments and attrued tncome 205 181 - -
Other recelvables 713 3,014 -
Loans to group companies - 3,900 3,900
Nan-current portion 919 1,195 3.900 3,900
Current portion 10,120 3,425 1,516 1.180

Trads receivables are recorded at amortised cost, reduced by estimated allowances for daubtful debts. The fair value of trade and other recelvables does

not differ materially from the book value.

The etfective Interest rate on non-current icins to related partias Is charged at LIBOR plus 1% In both pertods

There Is no sigrificant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade rece vab es as the Group has a large number of aistomears which are internationafly

thspersed

The maximyrn exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date Is the carrying vatue of each class of asset above The Group does not hold any collaterzl over

1hese balances

All non current recelvab es are due within five years of the balance sheet date

Trade receivables that are move than three months past dua are consdered to be mpalired unless a payment plan has been agreed with the customer and is
being adhered to Trade recenvables that are less than three months past due are not conskdered impaired unless amounts are specifically identified as

Irracoverable The ageng analysls of the Grougp's past due trade recelvables 15 a$ follows

016 2015
Not Impatred Impaired Total Not impaired impaired Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Up to 3 months past due 1,090 3 1,124 172 18 190
3 to 12 months past due 68 47 115 - 83 B3
Over 12 months past due . 50 &0 - 51 51
1,158 141 1_.399 212 152 324
In addition to the above, current debt of E118,000 (2015 £100,000) has been impaired
Provision for impairment of receivables
Movermnents an the prowision far impawment of trade recelvables are as folflows
Group £000
At 1June 2014 and 2 June 2014 370
Charge for the perlod 144
Exthange differentes 9
Receivables written off during the period as uncollectible [253)
At 31 May 2015 and 1 June 2015 FI¥]
Charge for the period 242
Exchange differences 1
Recelvables written off during the pericd as uncoflectible {236)
At 39 May 2016 259
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencles
2016 2015
£000 £000
Sterling 5,007 4,907
Euro 2,080 2,167
US dollar 2,360 2,142
Other currencles 1,602 1404
Total trade and other receivables 11,049 1,627
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20. Cash and cash egquivalents

Group Company
2m6 20158 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 10,998 11,942 843 n
- Shotl term bank depusits m 619 - -
Cash and cash eguivaients 11,775 12,561 [ ) 71

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are repayable on demand and inchude 2 right of set off between sterling and other currencies held In the UK
There were no utllised borrawing facllities at 29 May 2016 or 31 May 2015
11 Financial risk factorns

The Group’s activities expose It 1o a varlety of financiai risks market risk {including forewgn currency risk and interest rate risk), douidity rrsk, capital sk and
tredit risk. The Group's finandal risk management objective is to understand the nature and Impact of the financtat risks and exposures facing the busingss

Forelgn curmency risk

The majority of the Group’s business Is transacted in sterlng. euros and US doliars The princal currency of the Group Is sterling

The Group Is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally via
transactional expasure artsing from the future sales and purchases that are dencminated In a currency other than the functicnal currency of the
teansacting company

- transiation exposure arising on investments in foreign operations, where the net assets are denominated in a currency other than steri ng

- loans to non-UX subsidiartes.

The Group does rrot use foreign cusrency borrowings or forward foreign currency cantracts to hedge fore'gn currency risk. The level of the Group's expasure
to locelgn currency risk is regularly reviewed by the Group’s finance d rector and the Group’s treas.ry policies, inchuding hedgng pollc es, are reviewed to
ensure they remain appropriate

Fareign exchange sensitivity
The Impact on the Group's finandal assets and lahliities from forelgn curvency volatifty is shown in the sensitinity analysis below.

The sensitivily analysis has been prepared basad on all material financial assets 2nd habilities he d Jt the balance sheet date and does not refiect all the
changes in revenue or expenses that may result from changing exchange rates The analysss is prepared for the euro and US gollar gven that these represent
the major forelgn currencies in which financial assets and hatxlities are dencminated The sens tivittes shown act as 3 reasonable benchmark considering the
mavements In currencies over tha last two financlal periogs

The foliowing assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysls

- financral assets and liabilities (Including financia! instruments} are only considered sensitive to movements In forefgn curtency exchange rates where
they are not in the functional currency of the entity that holds them,

- transiation of results of overseas subsidianes is excluded.

Using the above assumptions, the following table shows the sensiivity of the Group's income statement to movements in foreign exchange rates on US
dollar and euro financial assets and Habliities

2016 2015

income Intome

gainftioss) gmn/(loss}

Group £000 £000
15% appreciation of the US dollar {2015 10N) 51 27
13% apprectation of the euro {2015 10%) {187) (35}

A depredation of the stated currencles would have an equal and opposite effect,
There Is no impact on equity gains or lossas

Interest rats rish
The Graup no langer has a significant exposure to Interest rate risk and hence no Interest rate sensitivity has been shown

Crad risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and depasiis with banks and financial institutions as wel. as credit exposures to ndependent retallers

The Group controls credit risk from a treasury perspective by only entering intc transact ons invohing finanztal instrur-ents with authorised counter-part as
with & credit rating of at least “A’, and by ensuring that such pasitions are momtored regularly, Credit r sk an cash and short term deposits i5] mited because
the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by Internationa! credit rating agencies.

There Is no signlficant concentration of credit risk with respect ta trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers that are intermnationally
ditpersed Polictes are also m place 1o ensure the wholesale sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and credst limits are
perlodiczlly reviewed Amounts recoverable fram customers are reviewsd on 2n angomg basis and appropriate provision made for bad and doubtful debts
{note 19) Prowision requirements are determined with reference Lo ageing of involces, credst histary and other availabile informatlon

Sales made through our own retail stores or wia masl order are made in cash or with major credst cards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

21 Financial risk Iactars contlnued

Capltal risk

The capltal structure of the Group consists of net funds {see note 29) and cwners’ equity (see notes 25 to 27] The Group manages s capial to safeguard
the abllity to operate as a going concern and ta optimise retumns to sharsholders. The Group®s objective is not to use lang term debt to Ainance the business,
Owerdraft ladlities will be used to finance the working capital cycle If requived

The Group manages its caphtal structure and makes adjustments to i tn light of changes to econamic conditions and its strategic chjectives Yo matntain or
adjust the capital strutiure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, buy back shares and cancel them or issue new shares. The Group

uses return on capital employed 10 assess capits] asset performance

Ugquidity risk

Liquidity Is managed by maintatining sufficient cash balances to meet working capital needs.

Cash {low requirements are monitored by sherl and long term roliing forecasts both within the local operating units and fer the overali Group in addition,
the Group's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in the major currencies and considers the level of liquid assets necessary to meet

these, monitoring working capital levels and liquwdity ratlos

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's linancial flabllities, inchuding imterest charges where applicable, are shown below Al trade payahles
are contraciually due within 12 months and therefore the lair values do not differ from their canying values

016 ms
Between Between Mome Between Between More
Within 1and 2 2and5s than Within lamd 2 2and5S than
1 year years years S5ywars 1year yedrs years Syears
Group EQ00 £000 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 9,104 141 . - 8,406 . - -
Provisians for redunttancies and property 614 159 124 - 33y n 61 -
Exceptional provisions = - - - 26 - - -
9,758 300 124 - 9,769 71 61 -
Within Withtn
1year 1 year
2016 2015
Company £000 £000
Trade and other payables 675 591
675 691
Fnandal instruments by category
Group Company
Loans and recenvables  Loans and receivables
2016 015 2015 2015
£000 EO00 £000 EO00
Financiat assets as par balance shaet
Trade recewables 4,278 4,438 . .
Accrued income 696 - . -
Other recewvables LAGY 1,345 - -
Receivables from group companies . - 1,496 1,142
Loans to group companies - - 3,900 3,900
Cash and cash equivalents 11,775 12,561 843 71
Total 18,216 18,394 6,239 5,113
Within the Group net cash and cash equivalents are overdrafts of £7,938,000 {2015 £4,276,000) wh ch are subject to b master netting arrangement
Prepayments have been exciuded from the 2bove as they are not financial assets
Group Company
Financial abikties 5t Financial labilitles at
amortised cost amortised cost
016 1015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financiat Nablilties a3 par batance shaat
Teade payables 4417 4,508 5 iz
Other payables 1,473 2,692 B 264
ALeruals 2,395 2,736 343 91
Paysbies to RTOUP COmpanies - - ny 324
Tolat 9,285 10,036 67% 691

Deferred income balances and other taxes and sotial security payables have been excluded from the above as they are not financial Habilites.
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12, Trade and other payabies

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 S
£000 000 [ £000
Current
Trade payables 4417 4,608 5 12
Other taxes and social security 1,082 189 43 al
Other payables 2473 2,692 a 264
Accruals 2,97 2,849 343 91
Delerred intome 1,955 2,693 - -
Payables to group companles - 319 324
12,844 11,111 718 738
The falr vatue ol trade and other payables does not materiaily differ from the book value
23. Other non-cumrent Habilitles
Graup Company
016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Accrushs 488 364 141 -

The fair value of ather non-current liabifities does not materialty difler from the book valse

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and cther payables and other non-current Habilities are denominated in the following Cutrencies

2016 05

£000 £000
Steriing 751 8,147
Euro 1,557 1,617
US dollar 3,346 2,830
Other currencier %8 901
Total trade ang other payables and other non-current liabilitles 13,332 13,495
24, Provisions
Analysls of total provisions

2016 2015
Group £000 £000
Current 823 529
Non current 621 458
Total provisions 1,444 987

Exceptionat Employee
items benefls  Property Total

Group £000 000 £000 £000
At 31 May 2015 26 492 469 587
Charged/{credited) to the income statement
- Additiona! provisions 107 671 778
- Unused amaunts reversed - {18} {109} {1271
Exchange differences - El 16 19
Utilised {26} 17 150! 213
At 29 May 2016 - 547 897 1,444

The Campany had no provisions at either period end. The falr valug of provisions does not differ from the book value

Employee benefits

The Group operates a long service incenttve schame under which emplayess recelve a ane off addittona)l holiday entitfement of two weeks when they reach
10 years of employment {10 Year Veterans) The cost of this benefit Is a¢c¢rued over the period of employment based on expected staff retention rates and

he anbapated employment costs and are ulilisad once an employee reaches 10 years of employment

Property provisions

Property pravisions relate ta property dilapidations and to committed costs outstanding under onerous or vacant l2ase tomm tments and wil dimintsh
over the lives of the undertying leases, The abave provision is expected to be uhlised by 2019 The estimated liabi vy 15 discounted to eis present value

using a discount rate of 0.96% {2015 4 0%)

Exceptional provisions

Exceptional provisions related to committed costs assotiated with the continenta) evropean reorgatusation announced in January 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

25 Shara capital
Share
Ordinary  premium
Nuinber of shares shares account Total
Group and Company {thousants) E000 £000 £000
AL june 2014 31,850 1,593 9,490 11,083
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 04 10 78 738
AL 31 May 2015 32,064 1,603 10,218 11,821
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 57 3 o 304
AL 29 My 2016 A 1,606 10,519 12,128

Ouring the period 57,157 ordinary shares were Issued {2015 203,827} The total authorised number of shares is 42,000,000 shares (2015 42,000,000 shares)
with a par value of 5p per share (2015 Sp per share} AD Issued shares are fully pakd

16. Other reserves

2016 2015
Capltal Capltal
redemption  Translation Other redemption  Translation Uther

reserve resarve resarve Total reserve resene reserve Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Beginning of period 01 2233 {1.,A50) 1,182 im 1,604 11.050) 1,655
Exchange cifferences on
iransiation of foreign pperations - 485 - 485 - {473) - {473)
End of period 101 2,616 {1.050) 1,657 101 2,131 {1,050} 1,182

The other reserve was created on liotation following a payment to the previous holders of the Company's ordinary shares
As at 29 May 2016, the Company’s capital redemption reserve was £101,000 {2015 £101,000) The Company had no other reserves In addition to the
caphtal redemption reserva at elther period end

2. Retained earnings
Group Company

£000 £000
At 1 june 2014 and 2 June 2014 42,656 23,292
Profit attributabile to owners of the parent 12,257 15,159
Deferred tax on share options (71} -
Current tax on share oplions 49 -
Share-based payments 32 32
Dlvidends to Company shareholders [16,601) {16,501}
Al 31 May 2015 and 1 june 2015 38,522 23,082
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 13,496 13,363
Current tax on share cptions (3} -
Share-based payments 193 193
Drndends to Company shareholders {12,837} {12,237)
A 29 May 2016 3931 13,801
8. Reconcillation of profit/{loss] to net cash from operating activities
Group Company

2015 2015 IMe 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating profit/(loss) 16,860 16,477 {2,164) {1,346)
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 5,308 4,991 - -
Net impalrment on property, plant and equipment n 9 - .
toss on disposal af praperty, plant and equipment (see betow) 18 3 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets (see below) 3% 24 .
Amortisation of capitalised development costs 3,853 4,728 - .
Amortisation of other intangibles 1,232 1,362 . -
Share-based payments 193 232 - .
Dwidend income from Investments in subsidtary undertakings - . 15,000 17,646
Changes in worling capltal-
- {Increase}/decrease In inventories (701} 882 -
= {increasel/decrease in trade and cther recetvables (293) {242) 13 {260}
- {Decrease)/Increase In trade and other payables (198) (39%) 118 155
- Increase/(decreass) In provis ons 436 {2,523} - (10}
Nat cash from operating activities 26,782 25,579 13,234 15,585
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28. Reconclilation al grofit/lloss) to net cash from operating activities continued

in the cash flow statement, proceeds from the sate of property, plant and equipment comprise

2016 2015
£000 £000
Nel book amount 28 9
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment fz8) (33)
Precaeds from saie of property, plant snd equipment - 2%

The Company sold no property, plant and equipment during either period

The Group disposed of Intangible assels with a net bock amount of £39,000 durlng the period (2015 £24,000} There were na proceeds on disposal In elther
period and hence a loss on disposa! equivalent to the net book value was recorded

The Company soki no other intangibles dunng ehther period,

13, Anatysh of net funds

As at Cash Exchange As at
31 May 2015 flow  movement 29 May 2016
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and In hand 12,561 {883) 97 11278
Net funds 12,561 {833) 97 11,775
As at Cash Exchange Asal
31 May 2015 flow  movement 79 Mgy 2016
Compary £000 000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and In hand 71 m 1 B4
Net funds 71 m 1 843
30, Commitments
Capltal commitments
Capetal expend|ture contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as (ollows
2016 2015
Group £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 609 ad7

The Company had no capita) commitmends at efther pericd end

Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate mnimurn lease payments under non-cancellable opevating leases are payabie as tollows

016 2015
Otwer Other
Retall stores property Other Retall stores property Other
Group £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Within 1 year 7,595 526 154 6,614 524 143
Between 2 and S years Inclusive 11,656 493 148 10,647 B46 115
in over S years 265 - - 414 .
19,516 1,019 302 17,675 1,370 258
The Company had no operatitig lease commitments al ether period end
|nwentory purchase commibments
1016 201%
Group £000 £000
Finished goods 1462 1,216
Compaonents 1,135 639
Raw materlals 92 43

The Company had no Inventory purchase commitments at either perlod end

Penston arrangements
The Group and Company operate defined conttibution schemes Commitments in respect of pensions are included within prepayments and accruals
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

31 Contingencies
The Group has conlingent habihittes in respect of the potentlal reversionary intere in sub-let leasehold properties amounting o £46,000 (2015 £93,000)

The Company provides indemnlties to third parties in respect of contracts regarding thelr use of the Group's Intellactuz! property, under commetcial
terms In the normal course of business,

The Company has alse guaranteed the bank overdraits of certaln Group undertakings for which the aggregate amount autsianding under these
arrangemenis al the balance sheet date was £1,424,000 {2015 £1,586,000)

For the year ended 29 May 2016, the subsidiary companes listed below are exempt from the reiulrements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit
of individual statutory accounts by wriue of section 479A As a rasult, the Company guaran®ees all outstanding Eabifitles 10 which the subssdiary companies
are subject

Countsry of
Incorporation Company
Name of undertaking or registration registration number
Games Workshop Limited England and Wales 1467092
Games Workshop International Liruted England and Wales 2924330
Gamas Workshop U5 timited England and Wales 1452305
Garnes Workshop US {Holdings) Limited Eng!and and Wales 4428814

32 Related-party tranzacilons
Curing the perled the Company provided management and simifar services to Games Workshop Limited, a subsidlary undertaking
Transactions between the Company and its subsrdiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation for the Group

Transactions between the Company and s subsidiaries are shown below

2018 2015
Subsidlary Nature of transaction £000 £000
Games Workshop laternateanal Lirated Dondends recenable - 547
Games Workshop Limited Recharges 382 353
Dividends receivable 15,000 17,129
Recewables/(payables) outstanding between the Company and its subsidlaries are shown below
Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
subsidiaries subsidiaries
2016 2015 2016 2025
Subsidiary £000 £000 £000 ELOQ
Games Warkshop Group PLC Employee Share Trust - 41 - -
Games Workshop Limited 1,275 978 - -
Games Workshop Retaii Inc 120 71 - -
EURL Games Workshop 4 1 - -
Games Workshop 5L 26 23 - -
Games Workshop Oz Pty Limited 2 - . (5)
Games Warkshop Deutschland GmbH 2 - - -
Games Warkshop Internationat Limited - . (319} {319)
Games Workshop (Queen Street) Umited 1 1 - .
Games Workshop [talla SRL 18 16 - .
Games Workshop Stockhcim AB - 1 - -
Games Workshop Hong Kong Limited &8 - - -
1,496 1,142 {319} {324}
Non-current laans outstanding between the Company and s subsidiaries are shown below
Arnaunts owed by
subsidianes
2016 2015
Subisidiary £000 £000
Games Workshop Interactive Limited 6719 6,779
Less provision for Impalrment {6,773) {6,779)
Games Workshop Limited 3,900 3,900
3,900 3,900

In addition, Mrs K Kirby (Lathbury) recelved £66.185 during the prior year from the Group for her work as interm head of IT Mrs Kirby ceased to wark for
tha Group on 30 November 2014 T H f Kirby provided consultancy at a cost of £35,000 in the year {2015 £25,000)
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

s 2015 1014 2013 m2

E£000 EQOD £000 E000 £000
Ravenua 118,069 119,132 123,501 134,597 131,009
Operating profit - pre-exceptions! kems and royaities recelvable 10,921 14,537 15,255 20,229 15,603
Exceptionalitems - a {4,500} - -
Royallies receivsble 5,939 1,498 1,442 1,025 3,537
Oparating profit 16,860 16,477 12,297 21,254 19,140
Finance income 23 109 106 178 434
finance tosts {5} (1) & (35} {100)
Prafit before taxaticn 16,948 16,585 12,396 21,355 19474
tncome tax expense {3.452) {4,328) {4,389) {5,077) {4,760}
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 13.496 IZ,ZSL'! 8,007 16,318 14,714
Baslc earnings per ordinary share 4L1p 383p 25.2p 515p a6 8p
Pre-excepticnal eamings per ordinary share 42.1p 382p 361p 515p 46 8p
FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Annual general meeting 14 September 2016
Announcement of half year results January 2017
Financlal year end 28 May 2017
Annauncemeni of final results luly 2017
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice Is hereby glven that the annual general meeting of Games Workshop Group PLC {the ‘Company’) will be held at the
Company's registered oifice, Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2WS at 10 Otam on 14 September 2016 for the fallowing

purposes

Ordinary business
As ordinary business to consider and, {I thought fit, to pass tha following resofutiens 1 to 10 as ordinary resalutions

Resolution 1
Ta receive the Company's annual accounts for the year ended 29 May 2016 together with the directors’ report, the remuneration
report and the auditor's report on those accounts, the auditable part of the reruneratlon report and the directors’ report

Resolution 2
To re-elect X D Rountree as a director

Resolution 3
To re-elect T H F Kirby as a director.

Resolution 4
To re-elect C ) Myatt as a director.

Resolution S
To re-elect NJ Donaldson as a director

Resolution &
Ta re-elect E O’'Donnell as a director

Resolution 7
To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to hold office until the canclusion of the next genera) meeting at winch

accounts are laid by the Company

Resoluticn 8
To authorise the directors to fix the auditors remuneration

Resolution 3
To apprave the remuneration report {excluding the directors’ remuneration policy set out on pages 22 to 25) for the year ended 29 May
2018,

Resotution 20
To approve the directars’' remuneration policy set out on pages 22 to 25, such remuneration policy to take effect from the date on which

the resolution 1s passed

Spedial business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resalutians, of which resolution 11 will be propased as an ordinary resclution and
resolutions 12 and 13 will be proposed as special resolutions

Resolution 11

That the directors of the Company be generally and uncondittonally authorised tn accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act
2006 {the ‘Act’) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot Relevant Secunties (as defined betow) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £529,991 pravided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varted or revoked by the Company, expire on 13 December
2017 ox, f earlfer, the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company save that the Company may, before such expiry,
make offers or agreements which would or might require Relevant Secunties to be allotted and the directors may aliot Relevant
Securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement notwithstanding that tha authority conferred by this resolution has expired This
rasolution revakes and replaces all unexercised authorities previously granted to the directors to allot Relavant Securities but without
prejudice 1o any allotment of shares or grant of nghts already made, offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.
Relevant Securities means (i} shares in the Campany other than shares allotted pursuant to an employes share scheme {as defined
by section 1166 of the Act), 8 right to subscribe for shares tn the Company where the grant of the right Itself canstituted a Relevant
Security or & right to canvert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant Security,
{ii} any right to subscriba for or to convert any security into shares In the Company other than rights to subscribe for or canvert any
secunty into shares allotted pursuant to 3an employee share schame {as dafined by section 1166 of the Act) References to the
ellotment of Relevant Securities in this resolution Inciude the grant of such rights,
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Resolution 12
That subfect to the passing of resclution 11 above, the directors of the Campany be given the general power pucsuant to sections 570
to 573 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’} to allot or make affers or agreements to allot equity securities for cash, either pursuant

to the authority tonferred by resolution 11 above or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as If section 561(1) of the Act did not apply
to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to*

{a) the allotment of equity securities In connection with a rights issue so that for this purpose ‘rights issue’ reeans an offer of
equity securities open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors to holders of equity securities on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion (as nearly as may be} to thelr respective holdings of such securitles or in accordance with
nghts attached thereto but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors consider necessary or expedient
In relation to treasury shares, fractianal entitlements or any legal or practical problems under the laws of, of the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stack exchange In any territory; and

(b)  the allatment of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal ameunt of £80,301.

The power granted by this resolution will expire on 13 December 2017 ar, If earlier, the conclusion of the Company's next annual
general meeting (unless renewed, varled or revoked by the Company prior to or on such date) save that the Company may, before
such expiry make offers or agreements which would or might require equity securitles to be aflotted after such expiry and the
directors may allot equity securities In pursuance of any such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this
resolution has expired. This resolution revokes and reptaces all unexercised powers previously granted to the directors to allot equity
securities as if either section 89(1) of the Companles Act 1385 or section 561{1) of the Act did not apply but without prejudice to any
allotment of equity securities already made or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities. For the purposes of this resalution

the expresslon ‘equity securities’ and references to ‘allatment of equity securities’ respectively have the meanings given to them in
section 560 of the Act.

Resalution 13
That the Company be and is hereby granted general and unconditional authority for the purposes of section 701 of the Companles Act

2006 (the 'Act’) to make market purchases {withun the mearing of section 633(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 5p each In the capital

of the Company (‘ordinary shares’) on such terms and in stch manner as the directars may from time ta time determine provided that:

{a) tha autharity hereby conferred shafl expire at tha conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company oron 13
December 2017 whichever Is the earfler;

{b) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares that may be purchased Is 3,212,070;

(c) the minimum price {excluding expenses) which may be pald for an ordinary share Is 5p;

(d) the maximum price {excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share Is the higher of: {I) an amount equal to 105
per cent of the average market value of an ordinary share in the Company for the five businiess days prior to the day on which
the purchase ts made, and {i)} the value of an ordinary share calculated on the basls of the higher of the price quoted for [a)
the last independent trade of; and (b) the highest current independent bid for, any number of the Company’s ordinary shares
on the trading venue where the purchase Is carried out,

(e} the Company may make a contract to purchase grdinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the explry of

such authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of
ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract.

By order of hboard
RFTongue
Compatyy secretary

25 luly 2016

Registered office:

Willow Road, Lenton

Nottingham

NG7 2WS

Registered in England and Wales under number 2670969
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING continued

Notes

10
1

12

13

14

15

16

Only those members registered on the Company's regnler of members at 6 10 pm on 12 September 2016 or, {f this mesting is adjourned, at
6.30pm on the day two days prior to the adjoumed meeting, 1hali be entitled to attend and vote at the reeting.

If you are a member of the Company at the time set 0ut »i note 1 above, you are entltled ta appoint a proxy to exerclse all or any of your rights to
attend, speak and vole 3 the meeting and you should have received a proxy form with this document. You can only appoimt a proxy using the
procedures set out (n these nates and the notes to the proxy form,

A proxy does not need (0 be 2 member of the Company but mtust attend the meeting lo represent you. Detalls of how to appoint the chalrman of
the meeting or anather persan as your proxy using the proxy form Jre set out tn the notes to the proxy form If yeu wish your praxy to speak on
your behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your own chalice af proxy {nat the chalriten) <nd give your tostructions directly ta therm.

You may appoint move than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercisa nghts altached to different shares. You may not appoint mare
than one proxy 1o exercise rights attached to any one share Detalls of hew to appomt more than one proxy are set out in the notes to the proxy
form

The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy how to vote on each resalution or withhold their wote A vote withheld is nat a vote
In law, which means that the vole will nat be counted in the calculation af votes for o+ against the resolution H no voting indication Is ghen, your
proxy will vote ar abstain from voting at his or her discretion Your proxy will vote {or absta:n from voting) as he of she thimks fit in retation to any
other matter which Is put before the meeting,

To appoint 2 proxy using the proxy forsn, the farm must be completed and s ghed and sent or delivered to the Company’s registrars, Equinitl
Umited, at Aspect House, Spencet Road, Lanting, BN93 6DA soas 1o be recened no fater than 48 hours betore the time fixed for holding the
mesting. Any power of attomney or any other authority under which the proxy form is signed {or a duly certified copy of such power or authotity)
must be ncluded with the proxy form In the case of 2 member which Is a company, the praxy form must be execited under its comman seal or
signed on s behall by an officer of the Company or an attorney for the Company

In the tase of [oinmt holders, where more than ane of tha {gint holders gurpons ta appalt & proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most
senior holder will be accepted Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company's register of
membets in cespect of the joint holding (the first- named being the most senior)

To change your praxy instructions simply submit 3 new proxy appointment using the methods set out above The cut-off time for recelpt of proxy
appointments {see above) also apphes in relat on o amended instructions, any ameaded proxy appomtment recelved after the relevant at-off
Hme will be disregarded If you submit more than one valld proxy appoin*ment, the appolatment recelved last befora the latest time for the
receint of proxies wall 1ake precedence.

In order to revohe 3 proxy instruction you will need ta inform the Company by sending 2 signed hard copy natice cleary stating your intention to
revoke yout proxy appointment to the Company’s registrars, Equiniti Limited, at Aspeci House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA_ In the tase of a
member which is 3 company, the revocation notice mus! be axecuted under its common seal or signed on its behali by an officer of the Company
or an attorney for the Company Any power of attorney or any other authonty under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly certified
capy of such power or zutharity) must be incladed with the revocation notice The revocation notice must be recetved by the Company’s
registrars, Equinkti Limited, at Aspect House Spencer Road, Lancing, BN39 6DA no later than the time fixed for holding the meeting If you
attempt to revoke your proxy 2ppointment but the revacation Is received after the time specified then, subject to the paragraph directly below,
your proxy appointment will rematn valid

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person

A carparation which is a member can appoint ona or more corporate representatives who may exeroise, on its behalf, afl its powers as a member
provided that no more than cne corporate representative exercises powers over the same share

As at 25 July 2016 [belng the Last practical date prior to the publication of this notice), the Company's issued shara capital comprised 32,120,708
ordinary shares of 5 pence each, Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company and, therefore, the total
number of voting rights n the Company as at 25 July 2016 §5 32,120,708 The wabsite referred (o in note 21 will include information on the
number of shares and voting rights

H you are 2 person who has been nominated under saztion 146 of the Companles Act 2006 to enjoy information rights {a ‘Nominated Person')
you may have a right under an agreement between you and the member of the Company who has nominated you {a ‘Relevant Member’) 1o have
Information rights to be apponted or to have someane else appolnted as a proxy for the mesting, If you either do not have such a right or if you
have such a rght but do not wish ta exercise it, you fmay have a right under an 2greement between you and the Relevant Member 10 give
Instructions to the Relevant Member as to the exercise of voting rights Your main poiat of contact én terms of your Imvestment in the Company
remains the Relevant Member {or, pethaps, your custodian or broker) and you should continue to contact them {and not the Company) regarnding
any changes or queries relating to your personal detalls and your [nterest in the Company {including any sdministrative matters) The only
exception to this is where the Company expressly requests a response from you

You may not use any elactronic addrass provided either in this notice of annual general meeting or any related documents {including the

proxy farm), to communicate with the Company for any purpaoses other than those expressly stated

Under section 338 of the Companles Act 2006, a member or members meeting the quallfication criteria 381 out at note 18 below, may, subject to
conditions, require the Company to give to members notkce of a resolution which may propery be mowved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting. The conditions are that (a) the resolutlan must not, if passed, be ineffectiva (whether by reason of inconststency with any enactment or
the Company’s constilution or otherwse}, (b} the resohstion must not be defarmatory of any person, frivoious or vexatious, |¢) the request may be
tn hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 19 below), must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given by elther setting cut the
resalution n full or, if supporting a resoluton sent by another member, dearly identifying the resolution which is bewg supported, must be
authentcated by the persan or persons making It (see note 19 below), and must be received by the Company not (ater than 6 weeks befors the
meeting to which the request relates

Under sectrion 338A of the Companles Act 2006, a member or members meeting the qualification cnterla set out at note 18 below, may, subject
ta conditsons, require the Company 1o inciude i the business (o be dealt with it the meeting 2 matter (other than 2 proposed resolution) which
may properly be included In the business (a matter of business) The conditions are that {a) the matter of business mus® not be defamatory of
any persan, frivolous or vexatious, {b) the request may be in hard copy form or In electronic form (see note 19 below), must Identity the matter of
business by setting it out in fuit or, if supporting a statement sent by ancther member, clearly identdy the matter of business which 15 being
supported, must be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be suthenticated by the persons or person making
it {see nate 19 below) and must be received by the Company not later than & weeks before the meeting to which the request redates,
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Notes continued

17 Pursuant ta Chapter 5 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 {sections 527 Lo 531}, where requested by 2 member or members merting the
gualtfization criterla set out at note 1B below, the Company must publish on its website, a statement setting out any matter that such members
propose Lo ralse at the meeting relating to the audit of the Company's attounts (inchudmg the awchtor's report and the conduct of the autit) that
are to be {aid before the meeting Where the Company Is required to gublish such a stitement on its website, It may not require the mermbers
making the request (o pay any expenses inturred by the Company in complying with the request, It nust forward the statement to the
Company's auditors na later (han the time the statement is made available on the Company’s webslte, and the staternent may be dealt wih as
part of the busmess of the meeting The request may he in hard £opy form or In electronic form (see note 19 below), either set out the statement
i full, of If supposrting 3 staternent sent by ancther membes, tearty idamitfy the statement which 15 being supporied, must be authemicated by
the person or persons making it (see note 19 below), and be received by the Company at least one week befare the meeting.

18. Inorder (o be abie to exerclse the members’ right to require circufation of a resolution to be proposed at the meeting (see note 15); a mitter of
business to be dealt with at the meeting (see note 16) or the Campany to publish awudit concerns (sea note 17), the relevant reguest must be
made by a member or members having a right Lo vote at the meeting and hotding at least 5% of total voting rights of the Company, or at least
100 members having a right to vote a1 the meeting and holding. on average, at least £ 100 of pald up share capital For information on voting
rights, inctuding the totad number of voting rights, see note 12 above and the website referred toin note 21

19 Where a member or members wishes to request the Company to circulate a resolution to be proposed at the meeting (see note 15), Include 3
matter of business to be dealt with at the meeting {see note 16) or publish audit concerns {see note 17) such request must be made In
accordance with one of the following ways {a) a hard copy request which Is signed by you, which states your full name and address and is sent to
Rachel Tongue, Games Workshop Group PLC, Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham NG7 2WS, or (b) a request whieh states your fufl name and
address, and Is sent to rachel longus@gwpic com Please state ‘AGM’ [n the subject line of the e-mall

20 Under sectlon 319A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company must answer any question you ask relating to the business being dealt with at the
meeting uniess answering the guestion wovld nieriere undily with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential
information, the answer has already been given on 3 website In the form of an answer Lo a question or d is undesirable in the interests of tha
Company or the good order of the meet ng that the question be answered

231 Information regarding the meeting, includiag the Information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, 15 available from
http J/investar games-workshop comn.

22 The [ollowing documents wiil be available for inspectlon for at feast 15 munutes prior to 1he meeting and during 1he meeting (a) coples of the
service contracts of executive directors of the Company and (b} coples of the sesvice 2greements of the independent directors of the Company

23 CREST membess who wish to appoint a proxy of proxles by vtillung the CREST electronic proxy appointment serwce may do so by utilising the
procedures described in the CREST Manual on the Euraclear websiie {www euroclkear.com) CRESY personat members o other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appainted a voting service provider(s), shouid refer to their CREST sponsor of voting service
provider|s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf In order far a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be valid,
the appropsiate CREST meswge (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly authenticated m accordance with Evrociear UK & Ireland Limded's
(‘EUr) specifications and must contain the information raquired for such Instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The message, regardiess
of whether i constitutes the appatntrmem of a promy or an amendment 10 the instruchion grven to 2 previously appointed proay, must {in order to
be valid) be transmitted 5o a5 to be recetved by the issuer's agent (ID RA19) by the latest trme{s) for recelpt of proxy appointments specified in
the notice of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message
by the CREST Applicatrons Host) from which the issuer's agent Is able to retrieve the massage by enqulry to CREST in the manner prescribed by
CREST. The Company may treat as vwalid # CREST Proxy Instructicn n the tircumstances set out in Regulatian 35{5}a| of the Uncertificated
Securitles Regulations 2001 CREST members and, where applicable, thelr CREST sponso’s of voting service providers should note that EU| does
not make available special procedures n CREST for any particular messagas. Normal system timings énd limitations will therefore apply in refation
to the Input of CREST Proxy Instructions It is the responsibility of the CREST member concernad to take {or, if the CREST member s a CREST
personal member or spomorsd member or has appointed a voting service provider{s}, to procure that his CREST sponsor or vating service
provider{s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular
time in this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, thea CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to
those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

24. As an alternative to completing a hard copy praty form, a shareholder can appoint a proxy or prox-es electromcally by visiting www.sharevote.co uk.
Sharehoiders will need thelr voting 1D, task 1D and shareholder referente number {this 15 the series of numbers printed under thelr name on the: proxy
form), Aernatively, if a sharehokder has atready registered with Equin t) Umited's online portiolio service, Shareview, they can submit a proxy form at
www, shareview, co.uk. Full instructions are given on both websites. To ba walid, your proxy zppointment{s) and iastructisns shoutd reach Equiniti
Limited no later than 48 hours before the time fixed to hold the meeting. Any elactronilc communication sent by a sharehoider ta the Company or the
reglstrar that is found (0 contain 3 computet virus will not be accepted
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